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General Information

Incorporator

AIX FM Limited is a private company limited by shares, incorporated in the Astana International
Financial Center (the “AIFC”) on 2 October 2019,

Astana International Exchange Limited (the “AIX) is the sole shareholder of AIX FM Limited.

Special Purpose C ompanies

On October 29, 2019 AIX FM Limited has incorporated in AIFC following five Special Purpose
Companies:

- iX Brent Oil Special Purpose Company Limited;

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Bonds Special Purpose Company Limited:

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Equities Special Purpose Company Limited:
- 1X US 500 Equities Special Purpose Company Limited:

- 1X US Aggregated Bonds Special Purpose Company Limited.

Annual Report

This Annual Report is produced in accordance with the requirements of AIFC legislation in respect
of each Special Purpose Company mentioned on the title page.

This Annual Report is prepared and executed by the AIX FM Limited, acting in a capacity of a
Director of each Special Purpose Company, as described herein.



iX Brent Oil Special Purpose Company Limited
Overview of the Company

iX Brent Oil Special Purpose Company Limited (“Company”) is a special purpose company,
registration number 191040900244, incorporated under the Acting Law of the Astana International
Financial Center ("AIFC™) on October 29, 2019 with registered address at Mangilik El 55,
building 19, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan, and governed by the AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules
(AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017).

Main business purpose

The Company is incorporated with the principal business purpose of 1ssuing and maintaining
Exchange Traded Notes (“ETNs"), the purchase of which will enable its holders to participate in
the performance (i.e., gains or losses) of the Underlying ETF.

Detailed information about the ETNs, issued by the Company, is given in the corresponding
Prospectus, published on the website of AIX.

Underlying ETF

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company is allowed to hold only shares in United States
Brent Oil Fund LP (NYSE Arca ticker symbol: "BNO™) and cash.

Legal form

The Company is incorporated in the form of a special purpose company in accordance with the
AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017), adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Astana Financial Services Authority.

The Registrar of Companies of the AIFC has issued a certificate of incorporation with respect to
the Company on October 29, 2019.

Articles of association of the Company

The articles of association of the Company provide that the purpose of the Company is limited to
conducting the following Exempt Activities (as such term is defined in the AIFC Special Purpose
Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017)):

(a) the issuance of exchange traded notes and conduct of any other transactions involving exchange
traded notes;

(b) the acquisition (by way of leasing, title transfer, risk transfer or otherwise), the holding and the
disposal of any asset in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in
paragraph (a) above;

(¢) the obtaining of any type of financing (banking or capital markets), the granting of any type of
security interest over its assets, the providing of any indemnity or similar support for the benefit
of its shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, or the entering into of any type of hedging
arrangements, in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in paragraph
(a) above;



(d) the financing of the shareholder or another special purpose company;
(e) any other activity approved in writing by the Registrar of Companies of the AIFC; and
(f) any activity ancillary to an activity mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (f).

In addition, in accordance with the articles of association of the Company shall be entitled to own
and/or hold only those assets which are permitted to be owned or held under the Prospectus of 1X
Brent Oil Exchange Traded Notes (as this Prospectus may be amended from time to time).

Board of Directors

AIX FM Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Astana International Exchange Ltd, acts as the
sole Director and Secretary of the Company. The appointment of AIX FM Ltd, being a body
corporate, as a director is permitted under Rule 6.1 of the AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules
(AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017).

Connected Persons

In accordance with AIFC legislation, following individuals and/or legal entities are considered as
the Connected Persons of the Company:

1) AIX FM Limited

2) Directors of AIX FM Limited: Timothy Oliver Bennett, Renat Bekturov, Arman
Tastanbekov

3) AIX group:

- Astana International Exchange Limited

- Astana International Exchange Central Securities Depository Limited

- Astana International Exchange Registrar Limited

- Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited

- AIX FM Limited

- 1X Brent Oil SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X US Short-Term Treasury SPC Limited

- iX US High Dividend SPC Limited

- 1X Gold SPC Limited

- 1X High Yield Corporate Bond SPC Limited

Results of operations during 2019 financial year

This Annual Report include the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on December 31, 2019.

Audited financial statements include:

- areview of the operations during the year and the results of those operations;



- details of any significant changes in the Company’s state of affairs during the financial year:

- details relating to the Company’s principal activities during the year and any significant
changes in the nature of those activities during the year.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events in the Company’s activities after December 31, 2019, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect Company’s operations in future financial years
or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Future performance

Taking into account that the major part of the assets of the Company is represented by the
investments in the shares of the Underlying ETF, and all future developments and expected results
of operations of the Company are fully depend on the future results of operations of the Underlying
ETF, the Company are not providing any planned or expected results of operations for the future
years.



iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds Special Purpose Company Limited
Overview of the Company

iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds Special Purpose Company Limited (“Company”) is a special
purpose company, registration number 191040900264, incorporated under the Acting Law of the
Astana International Financial Center (“AIFC”) on October 29, 2019 with registered address at
Mangilik E1 55, building 19, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan, and governed by the AIFC Special Purpose
Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017).

Main business purpose

The Company is incorporated with the principal business purpose of issuing and maintaining
Exchange Traded Notes (“ETNs™), the purchase of which will enable its holders to participate in
the performance (i.e., gains or losses) of the Underlying ETF.

Detailed information about the ETNs, issued by the Company, is given in the corresponding
Prospectus, published on the website of AIX.

Underlying ETF

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company is allowed to hold only shares in iShares J.P.
Morgan $§ EM Bond UCITS ETF (LSE ticker symbol: “JPEA™) and cash,

Legal form

The Company is incorporated in the form of a special purpose company in accordance with the
AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017), adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Astana Financial Services Authority.

The Registrar of Companies of the AIFC has issued a certificate of incorporation with respect to
the Company on October 29, 2019.

Articles of association of the Company

The articles of association of the Company provide that the purpose of the Company is limited to
conducting the following Exempt Activities (as such term is defined in the AIFC Special Purpose
Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017)):

(a) the issuance of exchange traded notes and conduct of any other transactions involving exchange
traded notes;

(b) the acquisition (by way of leasing, title transfer, risk transfer or otherwise), the holding and the
disposal of any asset in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in
paragraph (a) above;

(c) the obtaining of any type of financing (banking or capital markets), the granting of any type of
security interest over its assets, the providing of any indemnity or similar support for the benefit
of its shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, or the entering into of any type of hedging
arrangements, in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in paragraph
(a) above;



(d) the financing of the shareholder or another special purpose company;
(e) any other activity approved in writing by the Registrar of Companies of the AIFC; and
(f) any activity ancillary to an activity mentioned in paragraphs (a) to ().

In addition, in accordance with the articles of association of the Company shall be entitled to own
and/or hold only those assets which are permitted to be owned or held under the Prospectus of iX
Brent Oil Exchange Traded Notes (as this Prospectus may be amended from time to time).

Board of Directors

AIX FM Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Astana International Exchange Ltd, acts as the
sole Director and Secretary of the Company. The appointment of AIX FM Ltd, being a body
corporate, as a director is permitted under Rule 6.1 of the AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules
(AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017).

Connected Persons

In accordance with AIFC legislation, following individuals and/or legal entities are considered as
the Connected Persons of the Company:

1) AIX FM Limited

2) Directors of AIX FM Limited: Timothy Oliver Bennett, Renat Bekturov, Arman
Tastanbekov

3) AIX group:

- Astana International Exchange Limited

- Astana International Exchange Central Securities Depository Limited

- Astana International Exchange Registrar Limited

- Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited

- AIX FM Limited

- 1X Brent Oil SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X US Short-Term Treasury SPC Limited

- 1X US High Dividend SPC Limited

- 11X Gold SPC Limited

- 1X High Yield Corporate Bond SPC Limited

Results of operations during 2019 financial year

This Annual Report include the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on December 31, 2019,

Audited financial statements include:

- a review of the operations during the year and the results of those operations;



- details of any significant changes in the Company’s state of affairs during the financial year:

- details relating to the Company’s principal activities during the year and any significant
changes in the nature of those activities during the year.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events in the Company’s activities after December 31, 2019, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect Company’s operations in future financial years
or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Future performance

Taking into account that the major part of the assets of the Company is represented by the
investments in the shares of the Underlying ETF, and all future developments and expected results
of operations of the Company are fully depend on the future results of operations of the Underlying
ETF, the Company are not providing any planned or expected results of operations for the future
years.



iX Global Emerging Markets Equities Special Purpose Company Limited
Overview of the Company

1X Global Emerging Markets Equities Special Purpose Company Limited (“Company”™) is a
special purpose company, registration number 191040900284, incorporated under the Acting Law
of the Astana International Financial Center (“AIFC™) on October 29, 2019 with registered address
at Mangilik El 55, building 19, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan, and governed by the AIFC Special
Purpose Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017).

Main business purpose

The Company is incorporated with the principal business purpose of issuing and maintaining
Exchange Traded Notes ("ETNs"), the purchase of which will enable its holders to participate in
the performance (i.e., gains or losses) of the Underlying ETF.

Detailed information about the ETNs, issued by the Company. is given in the corresponding
Prospectus, published on the website of ATX.

Underlying ETF

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company is allowed to hold only shares in iShares Core
MSCI EM IMI UCITS ETF (LSE ticker symbol: “EIMI™) and cash.

Legal form

The Company is incorporated in the form of a special purpose company in accordance with the
AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017), adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Astana Financial Services Authority.

The Registrar of Companies of the AIFC has issued a certificate of incorporation with respect to
the Company on October 29, 2019.

Articles of association of the Company

The articles of association of the Company provide that the purpose of the Company is limited to
conducting the following Exempt Activities (as such term is defined in the AIFC Special Purpose
Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017)):

(a) the issuance of exchange traded notes and conduct of any other transactions involving exchange
traded notes:

(b) the acquisition (by way of leasing, title transfer, risk transfer or otherwise), the holding and the
disposal of any asset in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in
paragraph (a) above;

(¢) the obtaining of any type of financing (banking or capital markets), the granting of any type of
security interest over its assets, the providing of any indemnity or similar support for the benefit
of its shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, or the entering into of any type of hedging
arrangements, in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in paragraph
(a) above;



(d) the financing of the shareholder or another special purpose company;
(e) any other activity approved in writing by the Registrar of Companies of the AIFC; and
(f) any activity ancillary to an activity mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (f).

In addition, in accordance with the articles of association of the Company shall be entitled to own
and/or hold only those assets which are permitted to be owned or held under the Prospectus of 1X
Brent Oil Exchange Traded Notes (as this Prospectus may be amended from time to time).

Board of Directors

ATX FM Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Astana International Exchange Ltd, acts as the
sole Director and Secretary of the Company. The appointment of AIX FM Ltd, being a body
corporate, as a director is permitted under Rule 6.1 of the AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules
(AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017).

Connected Persons

In accordance with AIFC legislation, following individuals and/or legal entities are considered as
the Connected Persons of the Company:

1) AIX FM Limited

2) Directors of AIX FM Limited: Timothy Oliver Bennett, Renat Bekturov, Arman
Tastanbekov

3) AILX group:

- Astana International Exchange Limited

- Astana International Exchange Central Securities Depository Limited

- Astana International Exchange Registrar Limited

- Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited

- AIX FM Limited

- iX Brent Oil SPC Limited

- iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

- iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

- iX US Short-Term Treasury SPC Limited

- iX US High Dividend SPC Limited

- 1X Gold SPC Limited

- iX High Yield Corporate Bond SPC Limited

Results of operations during 2019 financial year

This Annual Report include the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on December 31, 2019.

Audited financial statements include:

- areview of the operations during the year and the results of those operations;



- details of any significant changes in the Company’s state of affairs during the financial year:

- details relating to the Company’s principal activities during the year and any significant
changes in the nature of those activities during the year.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events in the Company’s activities after December 31, 2019, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect Company’s operations in future financial years
or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Future performance

Taking into account that the major part of the assets of the Company is represented by the
investments in the shares of the Underlying ETF, and all future developments and expected results
of operations of the Company are fully depend on the future results of operations of the Underlying
ETF, the Company are not providing any planned or expected results of operations for the future
years.



iX US 500 Equities Special Purpose Company Limited
Overview of the Company

1X US 500 Equities Special Purpose Company Limited (“Company™) is a special purpose
company, registration number 191040900274, incorporated under the Acting Law of the Astana
International Financial Center (“AIFC™) on October 29, 2019 with registered address at Mangilik
El 55, building 19, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan, and governed by the AIFC Special Purpose Company
Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017).

Main business purpose

The Company is incorporated with the principal business purpose of issuing and maintaining
Exchange Traded Notes ("ETNs"), the purchase of which will enable its holders to participate in
the performance (i.e., gains or losses) of the Underlying ETF.

Detailed information about the ETNs, issued by the Company, is given in the corresponding
Prospectus, published on the website of AIX.

Underlying ETF

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company is allowed to hold only shares in iShares Core
S&P 500 UCITS ETF (LSE ticker symbol: “CSPX™) and cash.

Legal form

The Company is incorporated in the form of a special purpose company in accordance with the
AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017), adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Astana Financial Services Authority.

The Registrar of Companies of the AIFC has issued a certificate of incorporation with respect to
the Company on October 29, 2019.

Articles of association of the Company

The articles of association of the Company provide that the purpose of the Company is limited to
conducting the following Exempt Activities (as such term is defined in the AIFC Special Purpose
Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017)):

(a) the issuance of exchange traded notes and conduct of any other transactions involving exchange
traded notes;

(b) the acquisition (by way of leasing, title transfer, risk transfer or otherwise), the holding and the
disposal of any asset in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in
paragraph (a) above;

(¢) the obtaining of any type of financing (banking or capital markets), the granting of any type of
security interest over its assets, the providing of any indemnity or similar support for the benefit
of its shareholders or any of its subsidiaries. or the entering into of any type of hedging
arrangements, in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in paragraph
(a) above;



(d) the financing of the shareholder or another special purpose company;
() any other activity approved in writing by the Registrar of Companies of the AIFC: and
() any activity ancillary to an activity mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (f).

In addition, in accordance with the articles of association of the Company shall be entitled to own
and/or hold only those assets which are permitted to be owned or held under the Prospectus of iX
Brent Oil Exchange Traded Notes (as this Prospectus may be amended from time to time).

Board of Directors

AIX FM Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Astana International Exchange Ltd, acts as the
sole Director and Secretary of the Company. The appointment of AIX FM Ltd, being a body
corporate, as a director is permitted under Rule 6.1 of the AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules
(AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017).

Connected Persons

In accordance with AIFC legislation, following individuals and/or legal entities are considered as
the Connected Persons of the Company:

1) AIX FM Limited

2) Directors of AIX FM Limited: Timothy Oliver Bennett, Renat Bekturov, Arman
Tastanbekov

3) AIX group:

- Astana International Exchange Limited

- Astana International Exchange Central Securities Depository Limited

- Astana International Exchange Registrar Limited

- Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited

- AIX FM Limited

- 11X Brent Oil SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X US Short-Term Treasury SPC Limited

- iX US High Dividend SPC Limited

- 1X Gold SPC Limited

- iX High Yield Corporate Bond SPC Limited

Results of operations during 2019 financial year

This Annual Report include the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on December 31, 2019.

Audited financial statements include:

- areview of the operations during the year and the results of those operations;



- details of any significant changes in the Company’s state of affairs during the financial year;

- details relating to the Company’s principal activities during the year and any significant
changes in the nature of those activities during the year.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events in the Company’s activities after December 31, 2019, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect Company’s operations in future financial years
or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Future performance

Taking into account that the major part of the assets of the Company is represented by the
investments in the shares of the Underlying ETF, and all future developments and expected results
of operations of the Company are fully depend on the future results of operations of the Underlying
ETF, the Company are not providing any planned or expected results of operations for the future
years.



iX US Aggregated Bonds Special Purpose Company Limited
Overview of the Company

1X US Aggregated Bonds Special Purpose Company Limited (“Company”) is a special purpose
company, registration number 191040900254, incorporated under the Acting Law of the Astana
International Financial Center ("AIFC™) on October 29, 2019 with registered address at Mangilik
El 55, building 19, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan, and governed by the AIFC Special Purpose Company
Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017).

Main business purpose

The Company is incorporated with the principal business purpose of issuing and maintaining
Exchange Traded Notes ("ETNs™), the purchase of which will enable its holders to participate in
the performance (i.e., gains or losses) of the Underlying ETF.

Detailed information about the ETNs, issued by the Company, is given in the corresponding
Prospectus, published on the website of AIX.

Underlying ETF

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company is allowed to hold only shares in iShares US
Aggregate Bond UCITS ETF (LSE ticker symbol: “TUAA™) and cash.

Legal form

The Company is incorporated in the form of a special purpose company in accordance with the
AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0001 of 2017), adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Astana Financial Services Authority.

The Registrar of Companies of the AIFC has issued a certificate of incorporation with respect to
the Company on October 29, 2019.

Articles of association of the Company

The articles of association of the Company provide that the purpose of the Company is limited to
conducting the following Exempt Activities (as such term is defined in the AIFC Special Purpose
Company Rules (AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017)):

(a) the issuance of exchange traded notes and conduct of any other transactions involving exchange
traded notes;

(b) the acquisition (by way of leasing, title transfer, risk transfer or otherwise), the holding and the
disposal of any asset in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in
paragraph (a) above;

(¢) the obtaining of any type of financing (banking or capital markets), the granting of any type of
security interest over its assets, the providing of any indemnity or similar support for the benefit
of its shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, or the entering into of any type of hedging
arrangements, in connection with and for the purpose of the transactions referred to in paragraph
(a) above;



(d) the financing of the shareholder or another special purpose company:;
(¢) any other activity approved in writing by the Registrar of Companies of the AIFC; and
(f) any activity ancillary to an activity mentioned in paragraphs (a) to ().

In addition, in accordance with the articles of association of the Company shall be entitled to own
and/or hold only those assets which are permitted to be owned or held under the Prospectus of iX
Brent Oil Exchange Traded Notes (as this Prospectus may be amended from time to time).

Board of Directors

AIX FM Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Astana International Exchange Ltd, acts as the
sole Director and Secretary of the Company. The appointment of AIX FM Ltd, being a body
corporate, as a director is permitted under Rule 6.1 of the AIFC Special Purpose Company Rules
(AIFC Rules No. GR0O001 of 2017).

Connected Persons

In accordance with AIFC legislation, following individuals and/or legal entities are considered as
the Connected Persons of the Company:

1) AIX FM Limited

2) Directors of AIX FM Limited: Timothy Oliver Bennett, Renat Bekturov, Arman
Tastanbekov

3) AIX group:

- Astana International Exchange Limited

- Astana International Exchange Central Securities Depository Limited

- Astana International Exchange Registrar Limited

- Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited

- AIX FM Limited

- 11X Brent Oil SPC Limited

- iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

- 1X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

- 1X US Short-Term Treasury SPC Limited

- 1X US High Dividend SPC Limited

- 1X Gold SPC Limited

- 1X High Yield Corporate Bond SPC Limited

Resulis of operations during 2019 financial year

This Annual Report include the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on December 31, 2019.

Audited financial statements include:

- areview of the operations during the year and the results of those operations;



- details of any significant changes in the Company’s state of affairs during the financial year;

- details relating to the Company’s principal activities during the year and any significant
changes in the nature of those activities during the year.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events in the Company’s activities after December 31, 2019, that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect Company’s operations in future financial years
or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Future performance

Taking into account that the major part of the assets of the Company is represented by the
investments in the shares of the Underlying ETF, and all future developments and expected results
of operations of the Company are fully depend on the future results of operations of the Underlying
ETF, the Company are not providing any planned or expected results of operations for the future
years.



AIX FM Limited
Management Company

All Special Purpose Companies have appointed AIX FM Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Astana International Exchange Ltd, as the Management Company. AIX FM Ltd (the
“Management Company”) and/or its affiliates is responsible for the provision of certain services
and has a right to receive the management fee pursuant to the Management Agreement.

All Special Purpose Companies are run operationally by the Management Company under the
Management Agreement. The Management Company outsources some of jts functions from the
Astana International Exchange Ltd.

The Management Company is the sole shareholder and incorporator for all Special Purpose
Companies. The Management Company was incorporated by the AIFC as a private company on 2
October 2019 with an initial share capital of US$1,500.000.

Sole shareholder of the Management Company

The Astana International Exchange Ltd (“AIX™) is the sole shareholder of the Management
Company. The following entities are the sharcholders of the AIX: Astana International Financial
Centre Authority JSC (62.59%), Shanghai Stock Exchange (25.10%), Nasdagq Technology AB
(3.21%), China-Kazakhstan Production Capacity Cooperation Fund Co., Ltd. (5.00%) and
Goldman Sachs International (4.1 0%).

The majority shareholder of the AIX, Astana International Financial Centre Authority JSC, is a
joint stock company incorporated under the laws of Kazakhstan and its legal status is defined in
Article 11 of the Constitutional Law of Kazakhstan “On the Astana International Financial Centre™
No. 438-V ZRK, dated 7 December 2015,

Board of Directors of the Management Company

The board of directors of the Management Company was appointed by a resolution of the board
of directors of the AIX dated September 17, 2019 and consists of:

. Timothy Bennett (Chairman of the Board of Directors);
. Renat Bekturov (Director); and
. Arman Tastanbekov (Director).

The business address of all the members of the board of directors of the Management Company
is: 55/19 Mangilik El Ave., block C 3 4. Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan.

There is no potential or current conflict of interests between the personal interests of any of the
directors of the Management Company and that of the duties such directors owe to the Special
Purpose Companies or the business interests of the Special Purpose Companies. There is no
arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, pursuant to
which any director of the Management Company was or is currently a director.

Timothy Bennett was appointed CEO of AIX in May 2018. He was previously CEO of NZX, the
operator of New Zealand's securities and derivatives markets and provider of trading. post-trade
and data services. Mr. Bennet led NZX through a period of significant organisational and
regulatory change, including the replacement and upgrading of NZX's trading and clearing



systems. and the launch of 23 ETF’s through NZX Funds Management. Prior to Joining NZX. Mr.
Bennett was a Partner with Oliver Wyman and the Boston Consulting Group in Asia. Mr. Bennett
has an MBA from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania and a B.C.A from Victoria
University of Wellington.

The Chairman’s commitments include directorship in the following companies:

- Astana International Exchange Limited:

- Astana International Exchange Central Securities Depository Limited:
- Astana International Exchange Registrar Limited:;

- Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited.

Renat Bekturov has over 10 years of experience in the financial services industry. His previous
work experience includes heading the Treasury at the National Investment Corporation of the
National Bank of Kazakhstan. Mr. Bekturov also worked at the Development Bank of Kazakhstan
and was involved in number of the landmark debt capital market transactions, such as the first
Sukuk issue in the CIS region. Mr. Bekturoy holds an MSc degree in Banking and Finance with
Distinction from the University of Leicester and is a CFA Charter holder.

Arman Tastanbekov is a lawyer with extensive experience in capital markets, M&A. oil & gas
and mining industries. He has worked for over |7 years as an associate and partner with prominent
international law firms and as country chief counsel for a FTSE100 company. Mr. Tastanbekov
holds an LLB (with honors) from the Kazakh State Law University and an LL.M. from the
American University Washington College of Law, Washington, DC, USA. He is admitted to
practice law in Kazakhstan and the State of New York, USA.



Report from the Directors

The Board of Directors of AIX FM Limited, being the Director of the Special Purpose Companies
(the "Board™) submits its annual report together with the audited financial statements for the
Special Purpose Companies (the “SPCs”) for the year ended 31 December 2019,

Going Concern

The SPCs’ forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in its
performance, show that the SPCs should be able to operate for an indefinite period of time and
there is no material uncertainty in its future operations.

The Board believes that the SPCs’ strategy and business models are aligned to its principal
business purpose.

The Board have a reasonable expectation that the SPCs have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, the Board continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements,

Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance and is
accountable to shareholders for the governance of the SPC’s affairs. The SPCs are subject to the
governance standards set out in the AIFC legislation.

The Board has considered the principles and recommendations of the applicable legislation and
have put in place a framework for corporate governance which it believes is appropriate for the
SPCs.

The framework for the corporate governance is not fully in compliance with applicable legislation,
but given the limited scope of operations of SPCs and its passive investment approach, in opinion
of the Board, such framework allows to the SPCs to achieve compliance with the outcomes
intended by the applicable legislation, and thereby contribute to prudent and sound management
of the SPCs.

Compliance

The Board have made the appropriate disclosures in this report to ensure the SPCs meets its
continuing obligations pursuant to the AIFC legislation.

The SPCs has no employees. The Board recognises that the holders of ETNs issued by the SPCs
invest into debt securities and considers that the governance structure and operational processes in
place for the SPCs are suitable for a Special Purpose Company.

The Board considers that the SPCs has complied with the relevant provisions contained within the
applicable legislation throughout this accounting period.

Board's responsibilities

The Board meets regularly and also on an ad hoc basis as required. All Directors are expected to
attend each meeting. Directors are provided with relevant papers in advance of each meeting. In
addition, electronic copies of meeting papers and other relevant information are available to



Directors. If a Director is unable to attend a meeting, they will still receive the supporting papers.
During the financial year, ad hoc Board meetings were arranged at short notice and it was not
always possible for all Directors to attend.

The Board has responsibility for ensuring that the SPCs keeps proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the SPCs and which enable
it to ensure that the financial statements comply with applicable legislation and relevant accounting
standards. It is the Board’s responsibility to present a balanced and understandable assessment of
the SPC’s financial position. The Board 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the SPCs
and for taking reasonable steps in the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and external legal
counsel.

Committees of the Board

The Board has no committees established due to the SPCs’ limited scope of operations and the
nature of a Special Purpose Companies.

Performance evaluation

The Board formally reviews its performance on an annual basis and an appraisal system has been
implemented for the Board and the individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board.
This evaluation process assists in identifying individual Directors training and development needs.
The Board is satisfied with the robustness of the appraisal system and considers the current review
and evaluation process adequate,

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal controls of the SPCs and for
reviewing their effectiveness, for ensuring that financial information published or used within the
business is reliable, and for regularly monitoring compliance with regulations governing the
operation of the SPCs,

The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the SPC’s
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss and relies on the operating controls established by the service providers, The
Board is also responsible for overseeing the management of the most significant risks through the
regular review of risk exposures and related key controls.

The Board reviews the SP(Cs’ principal risks and the control processes over the risks identified.
The control processes cover financial, operational. compliance and risk management. There is a
monitoring and reporting process to review these controls, which has been in place throughout the
financial year under review and up to the date of this report. The Board can confirm that they have
carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the SPCs, including those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity, which are identified and
explored in greater detail within the section “Financial Risk Management” which forms part of the
financial statements. This section also explains how these risks are being managed and mitigated.

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control and risk
Mmanagement systems of the SPCs in relation to the financial reporting process. The SPCs have
procedures in place to ensure all relevant accounting records are properly maintained and are



readily available, including production of annual financial statements. The annual financial
statements of the SPCs are required to be approved by the Board and filed with AIX.

Monitoring and review activities

There are procedures designed for monitoring the system of internal control and risk management
and to capture and evaluate any failings or weaknesses. Should a case be categorised by the Board
as significant, procedures exist to ensure that necessary action is taken to remedy the failings.

Review of effectiveness

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls) for the financial year under review and
up to the date of approval of the financial statements. The Board is not aware of any significant
failings or weaknesses in internal control arising during this review. Had there been any such
failings or weaknesses, the Board confirms that necessary action would have been taken to remedy
them.

Remuneration

The SPCs are Special Purpose Companies and has no employees. The Board believes that the
principles relating to remuneration do not apply to the SPCs.

No Director past or present has any entitlement to pensions, and the SPCs have not awarded any
share options or long-term performance incentives to any of them. No element of Directors’
remuneration is performance-related.

No Directors are entitled to receive any remuneration for their services.
Directors’ and Secretary's Interests

None of the Directors, the Company Secretary, or their families hold or held any beneficial
interests in the SPCs or ETNs issued by the SPCs at 31 December 2019 or during the year to the
date of this report.

On behalf of ti¢ Board,

Timothy Oliyer Bennett

Chairman of the Board of Directors ’ Director
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(X Brent Oif SPC Limited

Statement of Management's Responsibility for the Preparation and Approval of the Financial
Statements for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019

The Management of iX Brent Qil SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is responsible for preparing the
financial statements that present fairly in all material respects the financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2019 as well as its financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity for the Period
from 29 October to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS)
In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for:

* selecting appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently;

* presentation, including accounting policies, in the way that ensures appropriate, reliable, compatible and
intelligible information:

* making additional disclosures where compliance with IFRS requirements is not enough for the readers
of the financial statements to understand the effect that any particular transactions, as well as other
events and conditions, have on the Company's financial position and financial performance: and

» estimating the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in foreseeable future.

The Management is also responsible for:

e designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and reliable system of internal controls,
throughout the Company:;

* maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company

comply with IFRS;
* maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and IFRS;
e taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and
 detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

These financial statements of the Company for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019 were
approved for issue gn 14 February 2020 by the Management of the Company.

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder and the Management of iX US 500 Equities SPC Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of iX US 500 Equities SPC Limited (hereinafter -
the Company) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in the equity, the statement of cash flows for the Period
from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes as well.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as well as its financial performance and cash flows for
the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We have performed audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are described in the section Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements herein. We are independent in relation to the Company. as required by the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (Code of IESBA)
and the ethical requirements applicable to our audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in compliance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for the evaluation of a Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, and for disclosure, where appropriate, of information relevant to the
continuity of operations, as well as for preparation of the financial statements based on the assumption of
continuity of operations, except when management intends to liquidate the Company, or discontinue
operations, or where it has no other realistic alternatives, other than liquidation or discontinuation of
operations.



Crowe

Those charged with governance are responsible for supervision of the preparation of the Company’s
financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement due to fraud or error, and to express the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance means a high

Standards on Auditing always identifies significant misstatements, if any. Misstatement can be the result of
fraud or error and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that they, individually or
cumulatively, can affect the economic decisions of users made on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of the audit performed in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing, we use
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform
the following:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures in response to the risks; obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Detection risk of material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the detection risk of material
misstatement due to error, since fraud can involve conspiracy, falsification, deliberate omission,
misrepresentation of information or override of internal controls:

e Obtain understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, and appropriateness of disclosures prepared by management:

* Make a conclusion with respect to the legitimacy of application of the going concern assumption, and
based on the audit evidence obtained we make a conclusion whether there is a material uncertainty
due to certain events or conditions that can result in significant doubts about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we come to a conclusion that material uncertainty exists, in the audit

in the loss of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, its structure and content, including
disclosures, as well as evaluate whether the financial statements present the underlying transactions
and events so as to ensure their fair presentation.

alia, information about the planned scope of the audit and its timing, as well as material findings of the audit
including significant shortcomings of the internal control identified in the course of the audit.

'
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We select from the issues that we brought to the attention of those charged with governance those issues
that were most important to the audit of the financial statements for the current period and, therefore, are
key issues of the audit We describe those issues in our audit opinion, except in cases where public
disclosure of those issues is prohibited by applicable laws or regulations, or, in very rare cases. where we
come to the conclusion that a certain matter shall not be communicated in our audit report, since we
reasonably assume that the adverse effects of communicating such information would be much stronger

than public benefit from its disclosure

Auditor Qualifying Certificate No 0000546 issued
by Kazakhstan Qualifications Commission on
Auditors’ Certification 08 July 2003

12/2 Kunayev Street, Office 16

Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

14 February 2020

Alberto Simoncini ( g
" -
Director O /

Crowe Audit Astana Limited Liability Partnership
LLP

Commercial License to perform audit activities in
Astana International Financial Centre No AFSA-O-
CD-2019-0078 issued by Astana Financial Services
Authority on 26 June 2019



iX US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

As at
Note 31 December 2019

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 77,773
Cash at bank 362
TOTAL ASSETS 78,135

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 1
Total equity 1
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6 78,134
Total liabilities 78,134
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 78,135

These financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
issue on 14 February,2 020 by the Management of the Company.

'h—_ ——7"
/ 7/
Ren tur7

Director

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019
Net gain from changes in fair value of financial assets 1,852
Net loss from changes in fair value of financial liabilities (1,833)
Administrative expenses (19)

Income before income tax .

Income tax expense -

Income for the period ~

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the period -

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



X US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019

Operating activities
Management fee (19)
Income tax paid -

Net cash flows from operating activities (19)

Financial activities

Placement of exchange traded notes 385
Contributions of equity 1
Net cash flows from financial activities 386
Net increase in cash 367
Net foreign exchange difference (5)
Cash at date of establishment -
Cash at 31 December 362

Non-cash transactions:

* 637 shares were acquired in the transaction with related party (Note 5) in exchange of exchange
trade notes, issued by the Company (Note 6).

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



X US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Issued capital

As at the date of establishment :

Total comprehensive income for the period -
Contributions of equity 1

As at 31 December 2019 1

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.

10



X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

General Information

IX US 500 Equities SPC Limited (hereinafter the ‘Company”) was registered on 29 October 2019 as a
Special Purpose Company at the Astana International Financial Centre (AIFC) under the identification
number 191040900274 in accordance with the Constitutional Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan “On the
Astana International Financial Centre” and the legislation of AIFC. Company operates under the
legislation of AIFC, which is a financial hub based in Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan.

The sole shareholder is AIX FM Limited, which is, in turn, owned and managed by Astana International
Exchange Limited (AIX Limited), a private company registered at AIFC. The owners of AlIX Limited are
AIFC Authority JSC — 62.59%, Shanghai Stock Exchange — 25.10% and others. The ultimate owner is
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan represented by National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, which transferred its shares in trust to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Legal address of the Company is: 55/15, Mangilik El Ave., Block C 3.4, Expo Center, Nur-Sultan, Republic
of Kazakhstan.

As a Special Purpose Company, the activity of the Company is mostly limited to issuing exchange traded
notes and holding foreign financial assets received for the sale of the former. Exchange traded notes are
then placed on AlX stock exchange and mirror the market value of Company'’s financial assets.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
release by the management of the Company on 14 February 2020.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that have been measured
at fair value.

The initial acquisition cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets, with financial instruments initially recognized at fair value.

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires using certain key accounting
estimates, and also requires Management to make judgements based on assumptions in the course of
application of the Company's accounting policies. The areas associated with the higher level of complexity
and application of assumptions as well as areas where the use of estimates and assumptions is material
for the Company’s separate financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Those estimates are based on
the information available as at the date of financial statements. Therefore, the actual amounts may differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When measuring fair value, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

11
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(a)

(b)

X US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Basis of preparation (continued)

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Going Concern

continue as a going concern.
Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan tenge (KZT), which is the Company’s functional
currency and presentation currency. All the values presented in these financial statements are rounded
to a thousand unless stated otherwise,

Transactions and Balances

measurement date.

12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder and the Management of iX Brent Oil SPC Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of iX Brent Qil SPC Limited (hereinafter — the
Company) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in the equity, the statement of cash flows for the Period
from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes as well.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as well as its financial performance and cash flows for
the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We have performed audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are described in the section Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements herein. We are independent in relation to the Company, as required by the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (Code of IESBA)
and the ethical requirements applicable to our audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in compliance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for the evaluation of a Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, and for disclosure, where appropriate, of information relevant to the
continuity of operations, as well as for preparation of the financial statements based on the assumption of
continuity of operations, except when management intends to liquidate the Company, or discontinue
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operations, or where it has no other realistic alternatives, other than liguidation or discontinuation of
operations.

Those charged with governance are responsible for supervision of the preparation of the Company's
financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement due to fraud or error, and to express the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance means a high
degree of certainty, but does not guarantee that the audit performed in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing always identifies significant misstatements, if any. Misstatement can be the result of
fraud or error and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that they, individually or
cumulatively, can affect the economic decisions of users made on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of the audit performed in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing, we use
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform
the following:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures in response to the risks: obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Detection risk of material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the detection risk of material
misstatement due to error, since fraud can involve conspiracy, falsification, deliberate omission,
misrepresentation of information or override of internal controls;

¢ Obtain understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, and appropriateness of disclosures prepared by management;

* Make a conclusion with respect to the legitimacy of application of the going concern assumption, and
based on the audit evidence obtained we make a conclusion whether there is a material uncertainty
due to certain events or conditions that can result in significant doubts about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we come to a conclusion that material uncertainty exists, in the audit
opinion we should draw attention to the relevant disclosure in the financial statements or, if such
disclosure is inadequate, we should modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained before the date of our audit opinion. However, future events or conditions can result
in the loss of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, its structure and content, including
disclosures, as well as evaluate whether the financial statements present the underlying transactions
and events so as to ensure their fair presentation.

We carry out information operations with those charged with governance, bringing to their attention, inter
alia, information about the planned scope of the audit and its timing, as well as material findings of the audit,
including significant shortcomings of the internal control identified in the course of the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we complied with all relevant
ethical requirements with respect to independence, and informed them about all relationships and other
issues that may reasonably be regarded as affecting the auditor's independence and. where necessary,
about appropriate precautions.
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We select from the issues that we brought to the attention of those charged with governance those issues
that were most important to the audit of the financial statements for the current period and, therefore, are
key issues of the audit We describe those issues in our audit opinion, except in cases where public
disclosure of those issues is prohibited by applicable laws or regulations, or, in very rare cases, where we
come to the conclusion that a certain matter shall not be communicated in our audit report, since we
reasonably assume that the adverse effects of communicating such information would be much stronger
than public benefit from its disclosure

Lidiya Petru

Alberto Simoncini ( ; 3
) S
Director S

Crowe Audit Astana Limited Liability Partnership
LLP

Auditor

Commercial License to perform audit activities in
Astana International Financial Centre No AFSA-O-
CD-2019-0078 issued by Astana Financial Services
Authority on 26 June 2019

Auditor Qualifying Certificate No 0000546 issued
by Kazakhstan Qualifications Commission on
Auditors’ Certification 08 July 2003

1212 Kunayev Street, Office 16

Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

14 February 2020



iX Brent Qil SPC Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

As at
Note 31 December 2019

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 74,668
Cash at bank 377
TOTAL ASSETS 75,045

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 1
Total equity 1
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6 75,044
Total liabilities 75,044
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 75,045

These financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
issue on 14 February 2020 by the Management of the Company

B AT —

i o
7
.~ Rendt Bektyrov

Director

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Brent Oil SPC Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019
Net gain from changes in fair value of financial assets 2,953
Net loss from changes in fair value of financial liabilities (2,949)
Administrative expenses (4)

Income before income tax -

Income tax expense -

Income for the period -

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the period -

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Brent Oil SPC Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019

Operating activities
Management fee (4)
Income tax paid -

Net cash flows from operating activities (4)

Financial activities

Placement of exchange traded notes 385
Contributions of equity 1
Net cash flows from financial activities 386
Net increase in cash 382
Net foreign exchange difference (5)
Cash at date of establishment -
Cash at 31 December 377

Non-cash transactions:

* 9,395 shares were acquired in the transaction with related party (Note 5) in exchange of
exchange trade notes, issued by the Company (Note 6).

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Brent Qil SPC Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Issued capital

As at the date of establishment -

Total comprehensive income for the period -
Contributions of equity 1

As at 31 December 2019 1

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.
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iX Brent Oil SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

General Information

IX Brent Oil SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) was registered on 29 October 2019 as a Special
Purpose Company at the Astana International Financial Centre (AIFC) under the identification number
191040900244 in accordance with the Constitutional Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan “On the Astana
International Financial Centre” and the legislation of AIFC. Company operates under the legislation of
AIFC, which is a financial hub based in Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan.

The sole shareholder is AIX FM Limited, which is, in turn, owned and managed by Astana International
Exchange Limited (AIX Limited), a private company registered at AIFC. The owners of AIX Limited are
AIFC Authority JSC — 62.59%, Shanghai Stock Exchange — 25.10% and others. The ultimate owner is
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan represented by National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, which transferred its shares in trust to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Legal address of the Company is: 55/15, Mangilik El Ave., Block C 3.4, Expo Center, Nur-Sultan, Republic
of Kazakhstan.

As a Special Purpose Company, the activity of the Company is mostly limited to issuing exchange traded
notes and holding foreign financial assets received for the sale of the former. Exchange traded notes are
then placed on AIX stock exchange and mirror the market value of Company’s financial assets.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
release by the management of the Company on 14 February 2020.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that have been measured
at fair value.

The initial acquisition cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets, with financial instruments initially recognized at fair value.

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires using certain key accounting
estimates, and also requires Management to make judgements based on assumptions in the course of
application of the Company's accounting policies. The areas associated with the higher level of complexity
and application of assumptions as well as areas where the use of estimates and assumptions is material
for the Company's separate financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Those estimates are based on
the information available as at the date of financial statements. Therefore, the actual amounts may differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When measuring fair value, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into levels based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date:

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates realisation
of assets and repayment of liabilities and contractual commitments in the normal course of business.

Having analysed current management estimates regarding the Company's cash flow projections, the
Company's management made a conclusion that the application of the going concern principle for these
financial statements is reasonable and there is no material uncertainty as to the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan tenge (KZT), which is the Company's functional
currency and presentation currency. All the values presented in these financial statements are rounded
to a thousand unless stated otherwise.

Transactions and Balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates effective at the transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the
settlements of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the exchange rates effective at the reporting date are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rates effective at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates that were effective at the fair value
measurement date.
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Basis of preparation (continued)

Exchange Rates

Weighted average exchange rates established on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE") are used as
official exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The following exchange rates have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements:

31 December 2019

US Dollar 381.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New standards and explanations not yet accepted for use

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and have not been applied
in the preparation of these financial statements:

e IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. This standard was released in May 2017 and comes into force on
January 1, 2021. The standard will replace IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, and applies to all insurance
contracts (regardless of the organization that issues them), as well as certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation opportunities. This standard is not expected to have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

» Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of Business. In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, which changed the definition of the term “business” and should help
organizations determine whether the acquired combination of activities and assets is a business or
not. These amendments clarify the minimum business requirements, exclude the assessment of
whether market participants are able to replace any missing element, add guidance to help
organizations evaluate whether the acquired process is significant, narrow down the definition of
business and returns, and introduce an optional test for availability concentration of fair value. This
standard will not affect the financial position or performance of the Company.

* Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Determination of Materiality. In October 2018, the IASB issued
amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors to harmonize the definition of materiality in different standards and
clarify some aspects of this definitions. According to the new definition, “information is material if it can
reasonably be expected that its omission, distortion or disguise will affect the decisions of the main
users of general financial statements made on the basis of these financial statements that provide
financial information about a particular reporting entity.” Amendments to the definition of materiality
are not expected to significantly affect the financial statements of the Company.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The Company'’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

» Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition {(equity instruments)

s Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

¢ The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired

The Company'’s financial assets at amortised cost include cash at bank.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month expected
credit losses). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected credit losses).

For funds in credit institutions (cash and cash equivalents), the Company calculated expected credit
losses for a 12-month period. The 12-month expected credit losses are part of the lifetime credit losses,
which are expected credit losses that arise as a result of defaults on the financial instrument, possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, in the event of a significant increase in the credit risk
of a financial instrument since its initial recognition, the provision is estimated at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash

Cash reported in the statement of financial position includes cash on current bank accounts.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company's assumptions and
estimates were based on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers as possible liabilities certain areas of tax positions that the
Company is not able to challenge or does not believe that it is able to successfully challenge if assessed
by tax authorities. Such definitions involve significant judgments and may change as a result of changes
in tax laws and regulations, the determination of expected results from tax revenues and the results of tax
audits by tax authorities.

Financial instruments’ fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value of financial
instruments, the Company takes into account quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Financial assets’ fair value is determined according to market value on active financial exchange markets.

The market value of financial liabilities (exchange traded notes) is calculated as a cost of Company’s
financial assets less Company’s expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
United States Brent Oil Fund
LP 9,395 n/a 0% USD 74,668
Total 74,668

All financial assets were acquired in the transaction with related party Astana International Exchange
Market Liquidity Services Ltd. (AIX MLS Ltd.) dated 6 December 2019. Initially, 9,395 shares and 1
thousand Dollars were transferred to Company in exchange of exchange trade notes, issued by the
Company (Note 6). As such, all the Company’s financial assets are held until maturity date of
aforementioned notes when the former would be transferred to the holders of notes.

Notes can also be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before maturity date, which
would cause the corresponding outflow of financial assets before maturity date.

The Company is permitted to hold only cash and shares as its assets.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iX Brent Qil SPC Limited 9,395 5 December 2029 0%  USD 75,044
Total 75,044

All financial liabilities were issued by Company and sold to the related party AIX MLS Ltd. on 6 December
2019.

Notes are unsecured and can be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before
maturity date. The value of exchange traded notes is calculated as a cost of Company’s financial assets
less Company's expenses. Overall quantity of issued notes is 9,395 as at 31 December 2019.

Related Party Transactions

The parties, one of which is in the position to exercise control over the other, may have significant
influence on operational and financial decisions of the other party, or which are under joint control, are
considered related. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

The Company’s related parties are the Company’s shareholders (Note 1), companies under common
control (namely, AIX MLS Ltd.), its affiliates and the key management.

For 2019, transactions between related parties were as follows:

2019
Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Placement of exchange traded notes 72,979
AIX FM Limited
Administrative expenses (4)
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Related Party Transactions (continued)

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31 December 2019

Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 75,044

The Company has no staff and is entirely managed by parent company AIX Ltd. Remuneration for the
Company's management for 2019 was 4 thousand Tenge recognized in administrative expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies

Political and Economic Conditions

Over the last few years there were some improvements in the country’s economic situation, however, the
Kazakhstan economy continues to demonstrate features characteristic for developing markets including,
but not limited to, absence of national currency that is freely convertible outside the country and low
liquidity of debt and equity securities in the markets.

The Company's financial position and future operations may be deteriorated by lingering economic
difficulties characteristic for developing economies. The Company Management is able to foresee neither
the extent nor duration of economic difficulties or estimate their effect, if any, on these financial
statements.

Taxation
The Company is subject to taxation under the Kazakhstan Tax Code and the Constitutional law on AIFC.

Kazakhstan tax laws and practices are continuously modified and consequently are subject to various
interpretations and frequent changes which may have retrospective effect. Besides, interpretation of tax
laws by tax authorities with respect to the Company transactions and business may differ from the
management’s interpretation. Consequently, the Company transactions may be challenged by tax
authorities, and the Company may be charged with additional taxes, fines and penalties. Tax periods are
open for retrospective inspection by Kazakhstan tax authorities during five years.

Although there is a risk that Kazakhstan tax authorities may challenge the policies applied, the Company
Management believes that its position will be successfully supported in case of any dispute. Therefore,
as at 31 December 2019 no provisions for potential tax liabilities were accrued.

21



(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

iX Brent Oil SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Legal Processes and Actions

In the normal course of business, the Company may constitute as a target of different legal processes
and actions. The Company evaluates the likelihood of significant liabilities with due account for particular

circumstances and reflects relevant provision in the financial statements only when it is likely that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle liabilities and the amount of liability can be reliably estimated.

The Company Management believes that actual liabilities, if any, will not affect the current financial
position and financial performance of the Company. Due to the circumstances stated above no provisions
were formed in these financial statements.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's operations are exposed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management program focuses on unpredictability of financial risks and is aimed at
minimising the potential adverse impact on the Company's financial performance. The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposure.

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments were as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,668
Cash at bank 377

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (75,044)

Interest Rate Risk

As at the reporting date, the Company has no assets or liabilities with floating interest rates, therefore
Management does not disclose analysis of sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Currency Risk

The Company's exposure to a risk associated with changes in foreign exchange rates, is associated with
the Company’s activities. In 2019, the supply of goods is denominated in USD. Thus, the main currency
risk concentration is associated with a change in the exchange rate of USD against tenge. Management
does not hedge its currency risks due to the inactive market of financial instruments in the Republic of
Kazakhstan.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Currency Risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the structure of financial instruments in USD were as follows:

USD
2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,668
Cash at bank 377
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (75,044)
Net foreign currency position as at 31 December 1

A 10% weakening of tenge versus USD as at 31 December would have no effect on the capital and profit
(loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the assumption that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain unchanged.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Maximum credit risk exposure is shown
below:

31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,668
Cash at bank 377

Credit risk associated with balances of the accounts in financial institutions is controlled by the Company's
management in accordance with the Company's cash management policy. The maximum extent of the
Company's sensitivity to the credit risk arising from the default of financial institutions is equal to the
carrying amount of these financial assets.

The following table shows the balance of financial assets in banks at the reporting date using the credit
ratings of Fitch Rating:

Location Rating Amount
Reiffesenbank Russia BBB/Stable 74,668
Bank CenterCredit Kazakhstan  B/Stable 377

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk management objective is to ensure that the Company always has adequate funds. Due
to the dynamic nature of the operating activities, the Company seeks to maintain flexibility of financing by
ensuring sufficient funds.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss should be paid within 9 years after the reporting date.

23



(f)

(9)

iX Brent Oif SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Market risk limits are set and continuously reviewed by the parent company AIX Ltd. As a part of their
established market risk management process, the market risk department also monitors early signs of
possible changes in market conditions such as: anticipated and actual changes to interest rates; socio-
economic factors driving mortgage prepayment behaviours; and economic and geopolitical factors driving
currency and equity price movements. Market risk limits are ultimately approved by the AlX Ltd. Board of
Directors.

At an operational level, market risk is primarily managed by AIX Ltd., which is responsible for ensuring
that the Company's exposures are in compliance with market risk limits approved by the AIX Ltd. Board
of Directors and to take adequate actions when necessary.

Company’s total market risk exposure as follows:

Carrying Non-traded Primary risk
amount Traded risk risk sensitivity

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 24,668 74 668 ) EqL*,uty price,
loss FX
Cash at bank 377 - 377 FX
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit (75.044) (75.044) _ Eaquity price,
or loss FX

*Faoreign exchange rates

A 10% strengthening of financial instruments’ market equity prices as at 31 December would have the
following effect on the capital and profit (loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the
assumption that all other variables remain unchanged.

2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,467
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (7,467)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. Management believes that the
inputs it uses to determine fair value belongs to Level 1 inputs, as its shares are traded on reputed
international stock exchanges.
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Financial Risk Management {continued)
Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to the participants and benefits to other stakeholders as well as to maintain
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company can adjust the amount of dividends paid to the participants, ensure return on the
participants’ investment, issue new capital and sell assets in order to reduce the debt.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events after the reporting date.
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IX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Statement of Management's Responsibility for the Preparation and Approval of the Financial
Statements for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019

The Management of iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company") is
responsible for preparing the financial statements that present fairly in all material respects the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 as well as its financial performance, cash flows and
changes in equity for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for:

¢ selecting appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently;

e presentation, including accounting policies, in the way that ensures appropriate, reliable, compatible and
intelligible information;

* making additional disclosures where compliance with IFRS requirements is not enough for the readers
of the financial statements to understand the effect that any particular transactions, as well as other
events and conditions, have on the Company’s financial position and financial performance; and

¢ estimating the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in foreseeable future.

The Management is also responsible for:

* designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and reliable system of internal controls,
throughout the Company:;

e maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company
comply with IFRS;

e maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and IFRS;

e taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

These financial sta}fsments of the Company for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019 were
approved for issug on 14 February 2020 by the Management of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder and the Management of iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds
SPC Limited (hereinafter — the Company) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019 and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in the equity, the
statement of cash flows for the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as well.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as well as its financial performance and cash flows for
the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We have performed audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are described in the section Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements herein. We are independent in relation to the Company, as required by the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (Code of IESBA)
and the ethical requirements applicable to our audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in compliance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for the evaluation of a Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, and for disclosure, where appropriate, of information relevant to the
continuity of operations, as well as for preparation of the financial statements based on the assumption of
continuity of operations, except when management intends to liquidate the Company, or discontinue
operations, or where it has no other realistic alternatives, other than liquidation or discontinuation of

operations.
4
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Those charged with governance are responsible for supervision of the preparation of the Company's
financial statements.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement due to fraud or error, and to express the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance means a high
degree of certainty, but does not guarantee that the audit performed in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing always identifies significant misstatements, if any. Misstatement can be the result of
fraud or error and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that they, individually or
cumulatively, can affect the economic decisions of users made on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of the audit performed in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing, we use
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform
the following:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures in response to the risks; obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Detection risk of material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the detection risk of material
misstatement due to error, since fraud can involve conspiracy, falsification, deliberate omission,
misrepresentation of information or override of internal controls:

« Obtain understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, and appropriateness of disclosures prepared by management:

* Make a conclusion with respect to the legitimacy of application of the going concern assumption, and
based on the audit evidence obtained we make a conclusion whether there is a material uncertainty
due to certain events or conditions that can result in significant doubts about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we come to a conclusion that material uncertainty exists, in the audit
opinion we should draw attention to the relevant disclosure in the financial statements or, if such
disclosure is inadequate, we should modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained before the date of our audit opinion. However, future events or conditions can result
in the loss of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, its structure and content, including
disclosures, as well as evaluate whether the financial statements present the underlying transactions
and events so as to ensure their fair presentation.

We carry out information operations with those charged with governance, bringing to their attention, inter
alia, information about the planned scope of the audit and its timing, as well as material findings of the audit,
including significant shortcomings of the internal control identified in the course of the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we complied with all relevant
ethical requirements with respect to independence, and informed them about all relationships and other
issues that may reasonably be regarded as affecting the auditor's independence and, where necessary,
about appropriate precautions.
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We select from the issues that we brought to the attention of those charged with governance those issues
that were most important to the audit of the financial statements for the current period and, therefore, are
key issues of the audit We describe those issues in our audit opinion, except in cases where public
disclosure of those issues is prohibited by applicable laws or regulations, or, in very rare cases, where we
come to the conclusion that a certain matter shall not be communicated in our audit report, since we
reasonably assume that the adverse effects of communicating such information would be much stronger
than public benefit from its disclosure

Alberto Simoncini : 3
. {______2——-——— P
Director -

Crowe Audit Astana Limited Liability Partnership
LLP

Commercial License to perform audit activities in
Astana International Financial Centre No AFSA-O-
CD-2019-0078 issued by Astana Financial Services
Authority on 26 June 2019

Auditor Qualifying Certificate No. 0000546 issued
by Kazakhstan Qualifications Commission on
Auditors' Certification. 08 July 2003

1212 Kunayev Street, Office 16

Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

14 February 2020



X Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

As at
Note 31 December 2019
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 75,834
Cash at bank 379
TOTAL ASSETS 76,213

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 1
Total equity 1
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6 76,212
Total liabilities 76,212
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 76,213

These financial sta;gments of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
issue on 14 Febryary 2020 by the Management of the Company.

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019
Net gain from changes in fair value of financial assets 1,803
Net loss from changes in fair value of financial liabilities (1,801)
Administrative expenses (2)

Income before income tax a

Income tax expense %

Income for the period -

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the period -

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019

Operating activities
Management fee (2)
Income tax paid =

Net cash flows from operating activities (2)

Financial activities

Placement of exchange traded notes 385
Contributions of equity 1
Net cash flows from financial activities 386
Net increase in cash 384
Net foreign exchange difference (5)
Cash at date of establishment -
Cash at 31 December 379

Non-cash transactions:

e 34,310 shares were acquired in the transaction with related party (Note 5) in exchange of
exchange trade notes, issued by the Company (Note 6).

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Issued capital

As at the date of establishment -

Total comprehensive income for the period -
Contributions of equity 1

As at 31 December 2019 1

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.
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iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

General Information

IX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited (hereinafter the ‘Company”) was registered on 29
October 2019 as a Special Purpose Company at the Astana International Financial Centre (AIFC) under
the identification number 191040900264 in accordance with the Constitutional Law of the Republic of
Kazakhstan “On the Astana International Financial Centre” and the legislation of AIFC. Company operates
under the legislation of AIFC, which is a financial hub based in Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan.

The sole shareholder is AIX FM Limited, which is, in turn, owned and managed by Astana International
Exchange Limited (AIX Limited), a private company registered at AIFC. The owners of AIX Limited are
AIFC Authority JSC — 62.59%, Shanghai Stock Exchange - 25.10% and others. The ultimate owner is
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan represented by National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, which transferred its shares in trust to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Legal address of the Company is: 55/15, Mangilik EI Ave ., Block C 3.4, Expo Center, Nur-Sultan, Republic
of Kazakhstan,

As a Special Purpose Company, the activity of the Company is mostly limited to issuing exchange traded
notes and holding foreign financial assets received for the sale of the former. Exchange traded notes are
then placed on AIX stock exchange and mirror the market value of Company'’s financial assets.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
release by the management of the Company on 14 February 2020.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that have been measured
at fair value,

The initial acquisition cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets, with financial instruments initially recognized at fair value.

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires using certain key accounting
estimates, and also requires Management to make judgements based on assumptions in the course of
application of the Company's accounting policies. The areas associated with the higher level of complexity
and application of assumptions as well as areas where the use of estimates and assumptions is material
for the Company’s separate financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Those estimates are based on
the information available as at the date of financial statements. Therefore, the actual amounts may differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When measuring fair value, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

11



(a)

(b)

iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into levels based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates realisation
of assets and repayment of liabilities and contractual commitments in the normal course of business.

Having analysed current management estimates regarding the Company's cash flow projections, the
Company's management made a conclusion that the application of the going concern principle for these

Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan tenge (KZT), which is the Company's functional
currency and presentation currency. All the values presented in these financial statements are rounded
to a thousand unless stated otherwise

Transactions and Balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates effective at the transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the
settlements of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the exchange rates effective at the reporting date are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rates effective at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured

measurement date.

12



(a)

iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Exchange Rates

Weighted average exchange rates established on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE") are used as
official exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The following exchange rates have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements:

31 December 2019

US Dollar 381.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New standards and explanations not yet accepted for use

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and have not been applied
in the preparation of these financial statements:

e IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. This standard was released in May 2017 and comes into force on
January 1, 2021. The standard will replace IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, and applies to all insurance
contracts (regardless of the organization that issues them), as well as certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation opportunities. This standard is not expected to have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

¢ Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of Business. In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, which changed the definition of the term “business” and should help
organizations determine whether the acquired combination of activities and assets is a business or
not. These amendments clarify the minimum business requirements, exclude the assessment of
whether market participants are able to replace any missing element, add guidance to help
organizations evaluate whether the acquired process is significant, narrow down the definition of
business and returns, and introduce an optional test for availability concentration of fair value. This
standard will not affect the financial position or performance of the Company.

* Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Determination of Materiality. In October 2018, the |ASB issued
amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors to harmonize the definition of materiality in different standards and
clarify some aspects of this definitions. According to the new definition, “information is material if it can
reasonably be expected that its omission, distortion or disguise will affect the decisions of the main
users of general financial statements made on the basis of these financial statements that provide
financial information about a particular reporting entity.” Amendments to the definition of materiality
are not expected to significantly affect the financial statements of the Company.

13



(b)

iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

* Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

14



(b)

X Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

¢ The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired

The Company'’s financial assets at amortised cost include cash at bank.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss,

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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X Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

16



(b)

iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month expected
credit losses). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected credit losses).

For funds in credit institutions (cash and cash equivalents), the Company calculated expected credit
losses for a 12-month period. The 12-month expected credit losses are part of the lifetime credit losses,
which are expected credit losses that arise as a result of defaults on the financial instrument, possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, in the event of a significant increase in the credit risk
of a financial instrument since its initial recognition, the provision is estimated at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash

Cash reported in the statement of financial position includes cash on current bank accounts.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company’s assumptions and
estimates were based on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers as possible liabilities certain areas of tax positions that the
Company is not able to challenge or does not believe that it is able to successfully challenge if assessed
by tax authorities. Such definitions involve significant judgments and may change as a result of changes
in tax laws and regulations, the determination of expected results from tax revenues and the results of tax
audits by tax authorities.

Financial instruments’ fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value of financial
instruments, the Company takes into account quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Financial assets’ fair value is determined according to market value on active financial exchange markets.

The market value of financial liabilities (exchange traded notes) is calculated as a cost of Company's
financial assets less Company’s expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
ISHARES J.P.MORGAN USD
EM BOND UCITS ETF 34,310 n/a 0%  USD 75,834
Total 75,834

All financial assets were acquired in the transaction with related party Astana International Exchange
Market Liquidity Services Ltd. (AIX MLS Ltd.) dated 6 December 2019. Initially, 34,310 shares and 1
thousand Dollars were transferred to Company in exchange of exchange trade notes, issued by the
Company (Note 6). As such, all the Company's financial assets are held until maturity date of
aforementioned notes when the former would be transferred to the holders of notes.

Notes can also be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before maturity date, which
would cause the corresponding outflow of financial assets before maturity date.

The Company is permitted to hold only cash and shares as its assets.

19



iX Global Emerging Markets Bonds SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

6 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iX Global Emerging Markets
Bonds SPC Limited 34,310 5 December 2029 0% usD 76,212
Total 76,212

All financial liabilities were issued by Company and sold to the related party AIX MLS Ltd. on 6 December
2019,

Notes are unsecured and can be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before
maturity date. The value of exchange traded notes is calculated as a cost of Company’s financial assets
less Company's expenses. Overall quantity of issued notes is 34,310 as at 31 December 2019.

7 Related Party Transactions

The parties, one of which is in the position to exercise control over the other, may have significant
influence on operational and financial decisions of the other party, or which are under joint control, are
considered related. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

The Company’s related parties are the Company’s shareholders (Note 1), companies under common
control (namely, AIX MLS Ltd.), its affiliates and the key management.

For 2019, transactions between related parties were as follows:

2019
Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Placement of exchange traded notes 75,318
AlX FM Limited
Administrative expenses (2)
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Related Party Transactions (continued)

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31 December 2019

Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 76,212

The Company has no staff and is entirely managed by parent company AIX Ltd. Remuneration for the
Company’'s management for 2019 was 2 thousand Tenge recognized in administrative expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies

Political and Economic Conditions

Over the last few years there were some improvements in the country’s economic situation, however, the
Kazakhstan economy continues to demonstrate features characteristic for developing markets including,
but not limited to, absence of national currency that is freely convertible outside the country and low
liquidity of debt and equity securities in the markets.

The Company's financial position and future operations may be deteriorated by lingering economic
difficulties characteristic for developing economies. The Company Management is able to foresee neither
the extent nor duration of economic difficulties or estimate their effect, if any, on these financial
statements.

Taxation
The Company is subject to taxation under the Kazakhstan Tax Code and the Constitutional law on AIFC.

Kazakhstan tax laws and practices are continuously modified and consequently are subject to various
interpretations and frequent changes which may have retrospective effect. Besides, interpretation of tax
laws by tax authorities with respect to the Company transactions and business may differ from the
management’s interpretation. Consequently, the Company transactions may be challenged by tax
authorities, and the Company may be charged with additional taxes, fines and penalties. Tax periods are
open for retrospective inspection by Kazakhstan tax authorities during five years.

Although there is a risk that Kazakhstan tax authorities may challenge the policies applied, the Company
Management believes that its position will be successfully supported in case of any dispute. Therefore,
as at 31 December 2019 no provisions for potential tax liabilities were accrued.
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Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Legal Processes and Actions

In the normal course of business, the Company may constitute as a target of different legal processes
and actions. The Company evaluates the likelihood of significant liabilities with due account for particular

circumstances and reflects relevant provision in the financial statements only when it is likely that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle liabilities and the amount of liability can be reliably estimated.

The Company Management believes that actual liabilities, if any, will not affect the current financial
position and financial performance of the Company. Due to the circumstances stated above no provisions
were formed in these financial statements.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's operations are exposed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management program focuses on unpredictability of financial risks and is aimed at
minimising the potential adverse impact on the Company's financial performance. The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposure.

Categories of financial instruments
As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments were as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 75,834
Cash at bank 379

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (76,212)

Interest Rate Risk

As at the reporting date, the Company has no assets or liabilities with floating interest rates, therefore
Management does not disclose analysis of sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Currency Risk

The Company's exposure to a risk associated with changes in foreign exchange rates, is associated with
the Company’s activities. In 2019, the supply of goods is denominated in USD. Thus, the main currency
risk concentration is associated with a change in the exchange rate of USD against tenge. Management
does not hedge its currency risks due to the inactive market of financial instruments in the Republic of
Kazakhstan.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Currency Risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the structure of financial instruments in USD were as follows:

USD
2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 75,834
Cash at bank 379
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (76,212)
Net foreign currency position as at 31 December 1

A 10% weakening of tenge versus USD as at 31 December would have no effect on the capital and profit
(loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the assumption that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain unchanged.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Maximum credit risk exposure is shown
below:

31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 75,834
Cash at bank 379

Credit risk associated with balances of the accounts in financial institutions is controlled by the Company's
management in accordance with the Company's cash management policy. The maximum extent of the
Company’s sensitivity to the credit risk arising from the default of financial institutions is equal to the
carrying amount of these financial assets.

The following table shows the balance of financial assets in banks at the reporting date using the credit
ratings of Fitch Rating:

Location Rating Amount
Reiffesenbank Russia BBB/Stable 75,834
Bank CenterCredit Kazakhstan  B/Stable 379

Liquidity Risk

The liguidity risk management objective is to ensure that the Company always has adequate funds. Due
to the dynamic nature of the operating activities, the Company seeks to maintain flexibility of financing by
ensuring sufficient funds.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss should be paid within 9 years after the reporting date.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Market risk limits are set and continuously reviewed by the parent company AIX Ltd. As a part of their
established market risk management process, the market risk department also monitors early signs of
possible changes in market conditions such as: anticipated and actual changes to interest rates: socio-
economic factors driving mortgage prepayment behaviours: and economic and geopolitical factors driving
currency and equity price movements. Market risk limits are ultimately approved by the AlX Ltd. Board of
Directors.

At an operational level, market risk is primarily managed by AIX Ltd., which is responsible for ensuring
that the Company's exposures are in compliance with market risk limits approved by the AIX Ltd. Board
of Directors and to take adequate actions when necessary.

Company's total market risk exposure as follows:

Carrying Non-traded Primary risk
amount  Traded risk risk  sensitivity
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 75,834 75,834 _ Equity price,
loss FX*
Cash at bank 379 . 379 FX
Financial liabilities
: 21 liabilit - . . ;

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit (76.212) (76.212) _ Equity price,
or loss FX

*Foreign exchange rates

A 10% strengthening of financial instruments’ market equity prices as at 31 December would have the
following effect on the capital and profit (loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the
assumption that all other variables remain unchanged.

2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,583
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (7,583)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. Management believes that the
inputs it uses to determine fair value belongs to Level 1 inputs, as its shares are traded on reputed
international stock exchanges.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to the participants and benefits to other stakeholders as well as to maintain
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company can adjust the amount of dividends paid to the participants, ensure return on the
participants’ investment, issue new capital and sell assets in order to reduce the debt.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events after the reporting date.
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IX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

Statement of Management'’s Responsibility for the Preparation and Approval of the Financial
Statements for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019

The Management of iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is
responsible for preparing the financial statements that present fairly in all material respects the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 as well as its financial performance, cash flows and
changes in equity for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for:

* selecting appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently;

* presentation, including accounting policies, in the way that ensures appropriate, reliable, compatible and
intelligible information:

* making additional disclosures where compliance with IFRS requirements is not enough for the readers
of the financial statements to understand the effect that any particular transactions, as well as other
events and conditions, have on the Company’s financial position and financial performance; and

* estimating the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in foreseeable future.

The Management is also responsible for:

* designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and reliable system of internal controls,
throughout the Company;

¢ maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company
comply with IFRS;

¢ maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and IFRS;

e taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

» detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

These financial statements of the Company for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019 were
approved for issue’'on 14 February 2020 by the Management of the Company.

/] -
; Bey/urov

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder and the Management of iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of iX Global Emerging Markets Equities
SPC Limited (hereinafter — the Company) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019 and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in the equity, the
statement of cash flows for the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as well.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as well as its financial performance and cash flows for
the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We have performed audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are described in the section Audifor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements herein. We are independent in relation to the Company, as required by the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (Code of IESBA)
and the ethical requirements applicable to our audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in compliance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for the evaluation of a Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, and for disclosure, where appropriate, of information relevant to the
continuity of operations, as well as for preparation of the financial statements based on the assumption of
continuity of operations, except when management intends to liquidate the Company, or discontinue
operations, or where it has no other realistic alternatives, other than liquidation or discontinuation of
operations.

Those charged with governance are responsible for supervision of the preparation of the Company’s
financial statements.



Crowe

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement due to fraud or error, and to express the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance means a high
degree of certainty, but does not guarantee that the audit performed in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing always identifies significant misstatements, if any. Misstatement can be the result of
fraud or error and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that they, individually or
cumulatively, can affect the economic decisions of users made on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of the audit performed in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing, we use
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform
the following:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures in response to the risks; obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Detection risk of material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the detection risk of material
misstatement due to error, since fraud can involve conspiracy, falsification, deliberate omission,
misrepresentation of information or override of internal controls;

* Obtain understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, and appropriateness of disclosures prepared by management;

* Make a conclusion with respect to the legitimacy of application of the going concern assu mption, and
based on the audit evidence obtained we make a conclusion whether there is a material uncertainty
due to certain events or conditions that can result in significant doubts about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we come to a conclusion that material uncertainty exists, in the audit
opinion we should draw attention to the relevant disclosure in the financial statements or, if such
disclosure is inadequate, we should modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained before the date of our audit opinion. However, future events or conditions can result
in the loss of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, its structure and content, including
disclosures, as well as evaluate whether the financial statements present the underlying transactions
and events so as to ensure their fair presentation.

We carry out information operations with those charged with governance, bringing to their attention, inter
alia, information about the planned scope of the audit and its timing, as well as material findings of the audit,
including significant shortcomings of the internal control identified in the course of the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we complied with all relevant
ethical requirements with respect to independence, and informed them about all relationships and other
issues that may reasonably be regarded as affecting the auditor's independence and, where necessary,
about appropriate precautions.
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We select from the issues that we brought to the attention of those charged with governance those issues
that were most important to the audit of the financial statements for the current period and, therefore, are
key issues of the audit We describe those issues in our audit opinion, except in cases where public
disclosure of those issues is prohibited by applicable laws or regulations, or, in very rare cases, where we
come to the conclusion that a certain matter shall not be communicated in our audit report, since we

reasonably assume that the adverse effects of communicatin

than public benefit from its disclosure

Lidiya Petru
Auditor

Auditor Qualifying Certificate No 0000546 issued
by Kazakhstan Qualifications Commission on
Auditors' Certification. 08 July 2003

12/2 Kunayev Street, Office 16

Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

14 February 2020

g such information would be much stronger

Alberto Simoncini

Director et

Crowe Audit Astana Limited Liability Partnership
LLP

Commercial License to perform audit activities in
Astana International Financial Centre No AFSA-O-
CD-2019-0078 issued by Astana Financial Services
Authority on 26 June 2019



IX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

As at
Note 31 December 2019
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 77,672
Cash at bank 367
TOTAL ASSETS 78,039

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 1
Total equity 1
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6 78,038
Total liabilities 78,038
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 78,039

These financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
issue on 14 Fepruary 2020 by the Management of the Company.

Refiat Be

Director

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



IX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019
Net gain from changes in fair value of financial assets 4,692
Net loss from changes in fair value of financial liabilities (4,678)
Administrative expenses (14)

Income before income tax -

Income tax expense =

Income for the period -

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the period -

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019
Operating activities
Management fee (14)
Income tax paid -
Net cash flows from operating activities (14)
Financial activities
Placement of exchange traded notes 385
Contributions of equlity 1
Net cash flows from financial activities 386
Net increase in cash 372
Net foreign exchange difference (5)
Cash at date of establishment -
Cash at 31 December 367

Non-cash transactions:

* 6,745 shares were acquired in the transac

exchange trade notes, issued by the Company (Note 6).

Notes on pages from 11 to

25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.

tion with related party (Note 5) in exchange of



iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Issued capital

As at the date of establishment -

Total comprehensive income for the period
Contributions of equity 1

As at 31 December 2019 1

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.
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iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

General Information

IX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) was registered on 29
October 2019 as a Special Purpose Company at the Astana International Financial Centre (AIFC) under
the identification number 191040900284 in accordance with the Constitutional Law of the Republic of
Kazakhstan "On the Astana International Financial Centre” and the legislation of AIFC. Company operates
under the legislation of AIFC, which is a financial hub based in Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan.

The sole shareholder is AIX FM Limited, which is, in turn, owned and managed by Astana International
Exchange Limited (AIX Limited), a private company registered at AIFC. The owners of AIX Limited are
AIFC Authority JSC — 62.59%, Shanghai Stock Exchange — 25.10% and others. The ultimate owner is
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan represented by National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, which transferred its shares in trust to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Legal address of the Company is: 55/15, Mangilik EI Ave., Block C 3.4, Expo Center, Nur-Sultan, Republic
of Kazakhstan.

As a Special Purpose Company, the activity of the Company is mostly limited to issuing exchange traded
notes and holding foreign financial assets received for the sale of the former. Exchange traded notes are
then placed on AIX stock exchange and mirror the market value of Company’s financial assets.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
release by the management of the Company on 14 February 2020.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that have been measured
at fair value.

The initial acquisition cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets, with financial instruments initially recognized at fair value.

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires using certain key accounting
estimates, and also requires Management to make judgements based on assumptions in the course of
application of the Company’s accounting policies. The areas associated with the higher level of complexity
and application of assumptions as well as areas where the use of estimates and assumptions is material
for the Company's separate financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Those estimates are based on
the information available as at the date of financial statements. Therefore, the actual amounts may differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When measuring fair value, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

"
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iX Global Emerging Markets Equities SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into levels based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates realisation
of assets and repayment of liabilities and contractual commitments in the normal course of business.

Having analysed current management estimates regarding the Company's cash flow projections, the
Company's management made a conclusion that the application of the going concern principle for these
financial statements is reasonable and there is no material uncertainty as to the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan tenge (KZT), which is the Company’s functional
currency and presentation currency. All the values presented in these financial statements are rounded
to a thousand unless stated otherwise.

Transactions and Balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates effective at the transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the
settlements of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the exchange rates effective at the reporting date are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rates effective at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates that were effective at the fair value
measurement date.

12
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for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Exchange Rates

Weighted average exchange rates established on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE") are used as
official exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The following exchange rates have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements:

31 December 2019

US Dollar 381.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New standards and explanations not yet accepted for use

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and have not been applied
in the preparation of these financial statements:

¢ IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. This standard was released in May 2017 and comes into force on
January 1, 2021. The standard will replace IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, and applies to all insurance
contracts (regardless of the organization that issues them), as well as certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation opportunities. This standard is not expected to have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

e« Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of Business. In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, which changed the definition of the term “business” and should help
organizations determine whether the acquired combination of activities and assets is a business or
not. These amendments clarify the minimum business requirements, exclude the assessment of
whether market participants are able to replace any missing element, add guidance to help
organizations evaluate whether the acquired process is significant, narrow down the definition of
business and returns, and introduce an optional test for availability concentration of fair value. This
standard will not affect the financial position or performance of the Company.

« Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Determination of Materiality. In October 2018, the IASB issued
amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors to harmonize the definition of materiality in different standards and
clarify some aspects of this definitions. According to the new definition, “information is material if it can
reasonably be expected that its omission, distortion or disguise will affect the decisions of the main
users of general financial statements made on the basis of these financial statements that provide
financial information about a particular reporting entity.” Amendments to the definition of materiality
are not expected to significantly affect the financial statements of the Company.

13
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(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

* Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

14
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

¢ The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost include cash at bank.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets)is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month expected
credit losses). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected credit losses).

For funds in credit institutions (cash and cash equivalents), the Company calculated expected credit
losses for a 12-month period. The 12-month expected credit losses are part of the lifetime credit losses,
which are expected credit losses that arise as a result of defaults on the financial instrument, possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, in the event of a significant increase in the credit risk
of a financial instrument since its initial recognition, the provision is estimated at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities include financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash

Cash reported in the statement of financial position includes cash on current bank accounts.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company's assumptions and
estimates were based on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers as possible liabilities certain areas of tax positions that the
Company is not able to challenge or does not believe that it is able to successfully challenge if assessed
by tax authorities. Such definitions involve significant judgments and may change as a result of changes
in tax laws and regulations, the determination of expected results from tax revenues and the results of tax
audits by tax authorities.

Financial instruments’ fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value of financial
instruments, the Company takes into account quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Financial assets’ fair value is determined according to market value on active financial exchange markets.

The market value of financial liabilities (exchange traded notes) is calculated as a cost of Company's
financial assets less Company’s expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iShares Core MSCI EM IMI
UCITS ETF USD 6,745 n/a 0%  USD 77,672
Total 77,672

All financial assets were acquired in the transaction with related party Astana International Exchange
Market Liquidity Services Ltd. (AIX MLS Ltd.) dated 6 December 2019. Initially, 6,745 shares and 1
thousand Dollars were transferred to Company in exchange of exchange trade notes, issued by the
Company (Note 6). As such, all the Company's financial assets are held until maturity date of
aforementioned notes when the former would be transferred to the holders of notes.

Notes can also be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before maturity date, which
would cause the corresponding outflow of financial assets before maturity date.

The Company is permitted to hold only cash and shares as its assets.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iX Global Emerging Markets
Equities SPC Limited 6,745 5 December 2029 0% UsD 78,038
Total 78,038

All financial liabilities were issued by Company and sold to the related party AIX MLS Ltd. on 6 December
2019.

Notes are unsecured and can be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before
maturity date. The value of exchange traded notes is calculated as a cost of Company’s financial assets
less Company's expenses. Overall quantity of issued notes is 6,745 as at 31 December 2019

Related Party Transactions

The parties, one of which is in the position to exercise control over the other, may have significant
influence on operational and financial decisions of the other party, or which are under joint control, are
considered related. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

The Company’s related parties are the Company’s shareholders (Note 1}, companies under common
control (namely, AIX MLS Ltd.), its affiliates and the key management.

For 2019, transactions between related parties were as follows:

2019
Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Placement of exchange traded notes 74,281
AIX FM Limited
Administrative expenses (14)
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Related Party Transactions (continued)

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31 December 2019

Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 78,038

The Company has no staff and is entirely managed by parent company AlX Ltd. Remuneration for the
Company's management for 2019 was 14 thousand Tenge recognized in administrative expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies

Political and Economic Conditions

Over the last few years there were some improvements in the country’'s economic situation, however, the
Kazakhstan economy continues to demonstrate features characteristic for developing markets including,
but not limited to, absence of national currency that is freely convertible outside the country and low
liquidity of debt and equity securities in the markets.

The Company's financial position and future operations may be deteriorated by lingering economic
difficulties characteristic for developing economies. The Company Management is able to foresee neither
the extent nor duration of economic difficulties or estimate their effect, if any, on these financial
statements.

Taxation
The Company is subject to taxation under the Kazakhstan Tax Code and the Constitutional law on AIFC.

Kazakhstan tax laws and practices are continuously modified and consequently are subject to various
interpretations and frequent changes which may have retrospective effect. Besides, interpretation of tax
laws by tax authorities with respect to the Company transactions and business may differ from the
management’s interpretation. Consequently, the Company transactions may be challenged by tax
authorities, and the Company may be charged with additional taxes, fines and penalties. Tax periods are
open for retrospective inspection by Kazakhstan tax authorities during five years.

Although there is a risk that Kazakhstan tax authorities may challenge the policies applied, the Company
Management believes that its position will be successfully supported in case of any dispute. Therefore,
as at 31 December 2019 no provisions for potential tax liabilities were accrued.
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Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Legal Processes and Actions

In the normal course of business, the Company may constitute as a target of different legal processes
and actions. The Company evaluates the likelihood of significant liabilities with due account for particular

circumstances and reflects relevant provision in the financial statements only when it is likely that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle liabilities and the amount of liability can be reliably estimated.

The Company Management believes that actual liabilities, if any, will not affect the current financial
position and financial performance of the Company. Due to the circumstances stated above no provisions
were formed in these financial statements.

Financial Risk Management

The Company'’s operations are exposed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management program focuses on unpredictability of financial risks and is aimed at
minimising the potential adverse impact on the Company's financial performance. The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposure.

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments were as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 77,672
Cash at bank 367

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (78,038)

Interest Rate Risk

As at the reporting date, the Company has no assets or liabilities with floating interest rates, therefore
Management does not disclose analysis of sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Currency Risk

The Company’s exposure to a risk associated with changes in foreign exchange rates, is associated with
the Company’s activities. In 2019, the supply of goods is denominated in USD. Thus, the main currency
risk concentration is associated with a change in the exchange rate of USD against tenge. Management
does not hedge its currency risks due to the inactive market of financial instruments in the Republic of
Kazakhstan.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the structure of financial instruments in USD were as follows:

uUsb
2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 77,672
Cash at bank 367
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (78,038)
Net foreign currency position as at 31 December 1

A 10% weakening of tenge versus USD as at 31 December wauld have no effect on the capital and profit
(loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the assumption that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain unchanged.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Maximum credit risk exposure is shown
below:

31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14,672
Cash at bank 367

Credit risk associated with balances of the accounts in financial institutions is controlled by the Company's
management in accordance with the Company's cash management policy. The maximum extent of the
Company’s sensitivity to the credit risk arising from the default of financial institutions is equal to the
carrying amount of these financial assets.

The following table shows the balance of financial assets in banks at the reporting date using the credit
ratings of Fitch Rating:

Location Rating Amount
Reiffesenbank Russia BBB/Stable 77,672
Bank CenterCredit Kazakhstan  B/Stable 367

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk management objective is to ensure that the Company always has adequate funds. Due
to the dynamic nature of the operating activities, the Company seeks to maintain flexibility of financing by
ensuring sufficient funds.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss should be paid within 9 years after the reporting date.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices,

Market risk limits are set and continuously reviewed by the parent company AlX Ltd. As a part of their
established market risk management process, the market risk department also monitors early signs of
possible changes in market conditions such as: anticipated and actual changes to interest rates: socio-
economic factors driving mortgage prepayment behaviours; and economic and geopolitical factors driving
currency and equity price movements. Market risk limits are ultimately approved by the AIX Ltd. Board of
Directors.

At an operational level, market risk is primarily managed by AIX Ltd., which is responsible for ensuring
that the Company’s exposures are in compliance with market risk limits approved by the AIX Ltd. Board
of Directors and to take adequate actions when necessary.

Company’s total market risk exposure as follows:

Carrying Non-traded Primary risk
amount  Traded risk risk sensitivity

Financial assets
qunual assets at fair value through 77.672 77.672 ) Eqinty price,
profit or loss FX
Cash at bank 367 - 367 FX
Financial liabilities
qunmal liabilities at fair value through (78,038) (78,038) _ Equity price,
profit or loss FX

*Foreign exchange rates

A 10% strengthening of financial instruments’ market equity prices as at 31 December would have the
following effect on the capital and profit (loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the
assumption that all other variables remain unchanged.

2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,767
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (7,767)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. Management believes that the
inputs it uses to determine fair value belongs to Level 1 inputs, as its shares are traded on reputed
international stock exchanges.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to the participants and benefits to other stakeholders as well as to maintain
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company can adjust the amount of dividends paid to the participants, ensure return on the

Subsequent Events

There were no material events after the reporting date.
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IX US 500 Equities SPC Limited

Statement of Management'’s Responsibility for the Preparation and Approval of the Financial
Statements for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for:

» selecting appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently;

¢ Presentation, including accounting policies, in the way that ensures appropriate, reliable, compatible and
intelligible information;
of the financial statements to understand the effect that any particular transactions, as well as other
events and conditions, have on the Company's financial position and financial performance; and

* estimating the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in foreseeable future.

The Management is also responsible for:

* designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and reliable system of internal controls,
throughout the Company;

* maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company
comply with IFRS:

* maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and IFRS;

* taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

e detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

These financial stat f‘hents of the Company for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019 were
approved for issue’on 14 February 2020 by the Management of the Company.

Renat Bekturo(

(

Director
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Basis of preparation (continued)

Exchange Rates

Weighted average exchange rates established on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE") are used as
official exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The following exchange rates have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements:

31 December 2019

US Doliar 381.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New standards and explanations not yet accepted for use

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and have not been applied
in the preparation of these financial statements:

e |FRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. This standard was released in May 2017 and comes into force on
January 1, 2021. The standard will replace IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, and applies to all insurance
contracts (regardless of the organization that issues them), as well as certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation opportunities. This standard is not expected to have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

¢ Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of Business. In October 2018, the |IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, which changed the definition of the term “business” and should help
organizations determine whether the acquired combination of activities and assets is a business or
not. These amendments clarify the minimum business requirements, exclude the assessment of
whether market participants are able to replace any missing element, add guidance to help
organizations evaluate whether the acquired process is significant, narrow down the definition of
business and returns, and introduce an optional test for availability concentration of fair value. This
standard will not affect the financial position or performance of the Company.

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Determination of Materiality. In October 2018, the IASB issued
amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors to harmonize the definition of materiality in different standards and
clarify some aspects of this definitions. According to the new definition, “information is material if it can
reasonably be expected that its omission, distortion or disguise will affect the decisions of the main
users of general financial statements made on the basis of these financial statements that provide
financial information about a particular reporting entity.” Amendments to the definition of materiality
are not expected to significantly affect the financial statements of the Company.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPP| test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

» Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows: and
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired

The Company'’s financial assets at amortised cost include cash at bank.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met;

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and
¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets)is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
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X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month expected
credit losses). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected credit losses).

For funds in credit institutions (cash and cash equivalents), the Company calculated expected credit
losses for a 12-month period. The 12-month expected credit losses are part of the lifetime credit losses,
which are expected credit losses that arise as a result of defaults on the financial instrument, possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, in the event of a significant increase in the credit risk
of a financial instrument since its initial recognition, the provision is estimated at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash

Cash reported in the statement of financial position includes cash on current bank accounts.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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X US 500 Equities SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company's assumptions and
estimates were based on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers as possible liabilities certain areas of tax positions that the
Company is not able to challenge or does not believe that it is able to successfully challenge if assessed
by tax authorities. Such definitions involve significant judgments and may change as a result of changes
in tax laws and regulations, the determination of expected results from tax revenues and the results of tax
audits by tax authorities.

Financial instruments’ fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value of financial
instruments, the Company takes into account quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Financial assets’ fair value is determined according to market value on active financial exchange markets.

The market value of financial liabilities (exchange traded notes) is calculated as a cost of Company’s
financial assets less Company's expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iShares Core S&P 500
UCITS ETF 637 n/a 0% usD LTS
Total 77,773

All financial assets were acquired in the transaction with related party Astana International Exchange
Market Liquidity Services Ltd. (AIX MLS Ltd.) dated 6 December 2019. Initially, 637 shares and 1
thousand Dollars were transferred to Company in exchange of exchange trade notes, issued by the
Company (Note 6). As such, all the Company’s financial assets are held until maturity date of
aforementioned notes when the former would be transferred to the holders of notes.

Notes can also be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before maturity date, which
would cause the corresponding outflow of financial assets before maturity date.

The Company is permitted to hold only cash and shares as its assets.
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X US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iX US 500 Equities
SPC Limited 6,370 5 December 2029 0%  USD 78,134
Total 78,134

All financial liabilities were issued by Company and sold to the related party AIX MLS Ltd. on 6 December
2019,

Notes are unsecured and can be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before
maturity date. The value of exchange traded notes is calculated as a cost of Company's financial assets
less Company's expenses. Overall quantity of issued notes is 6,370 as at 31 December 2019.

Related Party Transactions

The parties, one of which is in the position to exercise control over the other, may have significant
influence on operational and financial decisions of the other party, or which are under joint control, are
considered related. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

The Company’s related parties are the Company’s shareholders (Note 1), companies under common
control (namely, AIX MLS Ltd.), its affiliates and the key management.

For 2019, transactions between related parties were as follows:

2019
Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Placement of exchange traded notes 77,235
AIX FM Limited
Administrative expenses (19)
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X US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Related Party Transactions (continued)

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31 December 2019

Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 78,134

The Company has no staff and is entirely managed by parent company AIX Ltd. Remuneration for the
Company’'s management for 2019 was 19 thousand Tenge recognized in administrative expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies

Political and Economic Conditions

Over the last few years there were some improvements in the country’s economic situation, however, the
Kazakhstan economy continues to demonstrate features characteristic for developing markets including,
but not limited to, absence of national currency that is freely convertible outside the country and low
liquidity of debt and equity securities in the markets.

The Company’s financial position and future operations may be deteriorated by lingering economic
difficulties characteristic for developing economies. The Company Management is able to foresee neither
the extent nor duration of economic difficulties or estimate their effect, if any, on these financial
statements.

Taxation
The Company is subject to taxation under the Kazakhstan Tax Code and the Constitutional law on AIFC.

Kazakhstan tax laws and practices are continuously modified and consequently are subject to various
interpretations and frequent changes which may have retrospective effect. Besides, interpretation of tax
laws by tax authorities with respect to the Company transactions and business may differ from the
management's interpretation. Consequently, the Company transactions may be challenged by tax
authorities, and the Company may be charged with additional taxes, fines and penalties. Tax periods are
open for retrospective inspection by Kazakhstan tax authorities during five years.

Although there is a risk that Kazakhstan tax authorities may challenge the policies applied, the Company
Management believes that its position will be successfully supported in case of any dispute. Therefore,
as at 31 December 2019 no provisions for potential tax liabilities were accrued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Legal Processes and Actions

In the normal course of business, the Company may constitute as a target of different legal processes
and actions. The Company evaluates the likelihood of significant liabilities with due account for particular

circumstances and reflects relevant provision in the financial statements only when it is likely that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle liabilities and the amount of liability can be reliably estimated.

The Company Management believes that actual liabilities, if any, will not affect the current financial
position and financial performance of the Company. Due to the circumstances stated above no provisions
were formed in these financial statements.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's operations are exposed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management program focuses on unpredictability of financial risks and is aimed at
minimising the potential adverse impact on the Company's financial performance. The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposure.

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments were as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 77,773
Cash at bank 362

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (78,134)

Interest Rate Risk

As at the reporting date, the Company has no assets or liabilities with floating interest rates, therefore
Management does not disclose analysis of sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Currency Risk

The Company's exposure to a risk associated with changes in foreign exchange rates, is associated with
the Company's activities. In 2019, the supply of goods is denominated in USD. Thus, the main currency
risk concentration is associated with a change in the exchange rate of USD against tenge. Management
does not hedge its currency risks due to the inactive market of financial instruments in the Republic of
Kazakhstan.
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for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)
Financial Risk Management (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the structure of financial instruments in USD were as follows:

usD
2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss TE.073
Cash at bank 362
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (78,134)
Net foreign currency position as at 31 December 1

A 10% weakening of tenge versus USD as at 31 December would have no effect on the capital and profit
(loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the assumption that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain unchanged.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Maximum credit risk exposure is shown
below:

31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 77,773
Cash at bank 362

Credit risk associated with balances of the accounts in financial institutions is controlled by the Company's
management in accordance with the Company's cash management policy. The maximum extent of the
Company's sensitivity to the credit risk arising from the default of financial institutions is equal to the
carrying amount of these financial assets.

The following table shows the balance of financial assets in banks at the reporting date using the credit
ratings of Fitch Rating:

Location Rating Amount
Reiffesenbank Russia BBB/Stable TT.773
Bank CenterCredit Kazakhstan  B/Stable 362

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk management objective is to ensure that the Company always has adequate funds. Due
to the dynamic nature of the operating activities, the Company seeks to maintain flexibility of financing by
ensuring sufficient funds.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss should be paid within 9 years after the reporting date.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Market risk limits are set and continuously reviewed by the parent company AlX Ltd. As a part of their
established market risk management process, the market risk department also monitors early signs of
possible changes in market conditions such as: anticipated and actual changes to interest rates; socio-
economic factors driving mortgage prepayment behaviours; and economic and geopolitical factors driving
currency and equity price movements. Market risk limits are ultimately approved by the AIX Ltd. Board of
Directors.

At an operational level, market risk is primarily managed by AIX Ltd., which is responsible for ensuring
that the Company's exposures are in compliance with market risk limits approved by the AlX Ltd. Board
of Directors and to take adequate actions when necessary.

Company's total market risk exposure as follows:

Carrying Non-traded Primary risk
amount  Traded risk risk sensitivity

Financial assets
Fmalnmal assets at fair value through 77.773 77,773 i equty price,
profit or loss FX
Cash at bank 362 - 362 FX
Financial liabilities
qunmal liabilities at fair value through (78,134) (78.134) Equity price,
profit or loss FX

“Foreign exchange rates

A 10% strengthening of financial instruments’ market equity prices as at 31 December would have the
following effect on the capital and profit (loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the
assumption that all other variables remain unchanged.

2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss T
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (7,777)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. Management believes that the
inputs it uses to determine fair value belongs to Level 1 inputs, as its shares are traded on reputed
international stock exchanges.
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X US 500 Equities SPC Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to the participants and benefits to other stakeholders as well as to maintain
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company can adjust the amount of dividends paid to the participants, ensure return on the
participants’ investment, issue new capital and sell assets in order to reduce the debt.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events after the reporting date.
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X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for the Preparation and Approval of the Financial
Statements for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019

The Management of iX US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is responsible for
preparing the financial statements that present fairly in all material respects the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 as well as its financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity
for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for:

* selecting appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently:

® presentation, including accounting policies, in the way that ensures appropriate, reliable, compatible and
intelligible information:

e making additional disclosures where compliance with IFRS requirements is not enough for the readers
of the financial statements to understand the effect that any particular transactions, as well as other
events and conditions, have on the Company's financial position and financial performance; and

* estimating the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern in foreseeable future.

The Management is also responsible for:;

e designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and reliable system of internal controls,
throughout the Company;

* maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company
comply with IFRS;

* maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and IFRS:
¢ taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and
¢ detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

These financial statements of the Company for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019 were
approved for issue on/14 February 2020 by the Management of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder and the Management of iX US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of iX US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited
(hereinafter — the Company) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in the equity, the statement of cash
flows for the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes as well.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as well as its financial performance and cash flows for
the Period from the date of establishment to 31 December 2019, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We have performed audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are described in the section Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements herein. We are independent in relation to the Company, as required by the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (Code of IESBA)
and the ethical requirements applicable to our audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in compliance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



Crowe

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for the evaluation of a Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, and for disclosure, where appropriate, of information relevant to the
continuity of operations, as well as for preparation of the financial statements based on the assumption of
continuity of operations, except when management intends to liquidate the Company, or discontinue
operations, or where it has no other realistic alternatives, other than liquidation or discontinuation of
operations.

Those charged with governance are responsible for supervision of the preparation of the Company's
financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement due to fraud or error, and to express the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance means a high
degree of certainty, but does not guarantee that the audit performed in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing always identifies significant misstatements, if any. Misstatement can be the result of
fraud or error and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that they, individually or
cumulatively, can affect the economic decisions of users made on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of the audit performed in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing, we use
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform
the following:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures in response to the risks; obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Detection risk of material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the detection risk of material
misstatement due to error, since fraud can involve conspiracy, falsification, deliberate omission,
misrepresentation of information or override of internal controls;

* Obtain understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, and appropriateness of disclosures prepared by management;

* Make a conclusion with respect to the legitimacy of application of the going concern assumption, and
based on the audit evidence obtained we make a conclusion whether there is a material uncertainty
due to certain events or conditions that can result in significant doubts about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we come to a conclusion that material uncertainty exists, in the audit
opinion we should draw attention to the relevant disclosure in the financial statements or, if such
disclosure is inadequate, we should modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained before the date of our audit opinion. However, future events or conditions can result
in the loss of the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, its structure and content, including
disclosures, as well as evaluate whether the financial statements present the underlying transactions
and events so as to ensure their fair presentation.
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We select from the issues that we brought to the attention of those charged with governance those issues
that were most important to the audit of the financial statements for the current period and, therefore, are
key issues of the audit We describe those issues in our audit opinion, except in cases where public
disclosure of those issues is prohibited by applicable laws or regulations, or, in very rare cases, where we
come to the conclusion that a certain matter shall not be communicated in our audit report, since we

reasonably assume that the adverse effects of communicatin

than public benefit from its disclosure.

Lidiya Petru
Auditor

Auditor Qualifying Certificate No 0000546 issued
by Kazakhstan Qualifications Commission on
Auditors’ Certification. 08 July 2003

1212 Kunayev Street, Office 16
Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

14 February 2020

g such information would be much stronger

Alberto Simoncini ( . '
- . ( .-f'
Director B o

Crowe Audit Astana Limited Liability Partnership
LLP

Commercial License to perform audit activities in
Astana International Financial Centre No AFSA-O-
CD-2019-0078 issued by Astana Financial Services
Authority on 26 June 2019



iX US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZ T thousands)

As at
Note 31 December 2019

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 74,770
Cash at bank 370
TOTAL ASSETS 75,140

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 1
Total equity 1
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6 75,139
Total liabilities 75,139
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 75,140

These financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
issue on 14 Febr}/ary 2020 by the Management of the Company.
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Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



iX US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019
Net gain from changes in fair value of financial assets 147
Net loss from changes in fair value of financial liabilities (136)
Administrative expenses (11)

Income before income tax -

Income tax expense -

Income for the period -

Other comprehensive income .

Total comprehensive income for the period -

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

2019

Operating activities
Management fee (11)
Income tax paid -

Net cash flows from operating activities (11)

Financial activities

Placement of exchange traded notes 385
Contributions of equity 1
Net cash flows from financial activities 386
Net increase in cash 375
Net foreign exchange difference (5)
Cash at date of establishment -
Cash at 31 December 370

Non-cash transactions:

¢ 35,535 shares were acquired in the transaction with related party (Note 5) in exchange of
exchange trade notes, issued by the Company (Note 6).

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.



IX US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Issued capital

As at the date of establishment -

Total comprehensive income for the period -
Contributions of equity 1

As at 31 December 2019 1

Notes on pages from 11 to 25 are the integral part of the Financial Statements.
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X US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

General Information

IX'US Aggregated Bonds SPC Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) was registered on 29 October 2019
as a Special Purpose Company at the Astana International Financial Centre (AIFC) under the
identification number 191040900254 in accordance with the Constitutional Law of the Republic of
Kazakhstan "On the Astana International Financial Centre” and the legislation of AIFC. Company operates
under the legislation of AIFC, which is a financial hub based in Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan.

The sole shareholder is AIX FM Limited, which is, in turn, owned and managed by Astana International
Exchange Limited (AIX Limited), a private company registered at AIFC. The owners of AlX Limited are
AIFC Authority JSC - 62.59%, Shanghai Stock Exchange — 25.10% and others. The ultimate owner is
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan represented by National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, which transferred its shares in trust to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Legal address of the Company is: 55/15, Mangilik El Ave., Block C 3.4, Expo Center, Nur-Sultan, Republic
of Kazakhstan.

As a Special Purpose Company, the activity of the Company is mostly limited to issuing exchange traded
notes and holding foreign financial assets received for the sale of the former. Exchange traded notes are
then placed on AIX stock exchange and mirror the market value of Company’s financial assets.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 were approved for
release by the management of the Company on 14 February 2020.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that have been measured
at fair value,

The initial acquisition cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets, with financial instruments initially recognized at fair value.

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires using certain key accounting
estimates, and also requires Management to make judgements based on assumptions in the course of
application of the Company’s accounting policies. The areas associated with the higher level of complexity
and application of assumptions as well as areas where the use of estimates and assumptions is material
for the Company’s separate financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Those estimates are based on
the information available as at the date of financial statements. Therefore, the actual amounts may differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When measuring fair value, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Period from 29 October to 31 December 2019
(all amounts are presented in KZT thousands)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into levels based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date:

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates realisation
of assets and repayment of liabilities and contractual commitments in the normal course of business.

Having analysed current management estimates regarding the Company's cash flow projections, the
Company's management made a conclusion that the application of the going concern principle for these
financial statements is reasonable and there is no material uncertainty as to the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan tenge (KZT), which is the Company’s functional
currency and presentation currency. All the values presented in these financial statements are rounded
to a thousand unless stated otherwise.

Transactions and Balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates effective at the transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the
settlements of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the exchange rates effective at the reporting date are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rates effective at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates that were effective at the fair value
measurement date.
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Basis of preparation (continued)

Exchange Rates

Weighted average exchange rates established on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE") are used as
official exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The following exchange rates have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements:

31 December 2019

US Dollar 381.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New standards and explanations not yet accepted for use

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and have notbeen applied
in the preparation of these financial statements:

* IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. This standard was released in May 2017 and comes into force on
January 1, 2021. The standard will replace IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, and applies to all insurance
contracts (regardless of the organization that issues them), as well as certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation opportunities. This standard is not expected to have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

* Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of Business. In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, which changed the definition of the term “business” and should help
organizations determine whether the acquired combination of activities and assets is a business or
not. These amendments clarify the minimum business requirements, exclude the assessment of
whether market participants are able to replace any missing element, add guidance to help
organizations evaluate whether the acquired process is significant, narrow down the definition of
business and returns, and introduce an optional test for availability concentration of fair value. This
standard will not affect the financial position or performance of the Company.

e Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Determination of Materiality. In October 2018, the IASB issued
amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors to harmonize the definition of materiality in different standards and
clarify some aspects of this definitions. According to the new definition, “information is material if it can
reasonably be expected that its omission, distortion or disguise will affect the decisions of the main
users of general financial statements made on the basis of these financial statements that provide
financial information about a particular reporting entity.” Amendments to the definition of materiality
are not expected to significantly affect the financial statements of the Company.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

* Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired

The Company's financial assets at amortised cost include cash at bank.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

At the reporting date, the Company has no financial assets (equity instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month expected
credit losses). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected credit losses).

For funds in credit institutions (cash and cash equivalents), the Company calculated expected credit
losses for a 12-month period. The 12-month expected credit losses are part of the lifetime credit losses,
which are expected credit losses that arise as a result of defaults on the financial instrument, possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, in the event of a significant increase in the credit risk
of a financial instrument since its initial recognition, the provision is estimated at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities include financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash

Cash reported in the statement of financial position includes cash on current bank accounts.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company’s assumptions and
estimates were based on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers as possible liabilities certain areas of tax positions that the
Company is not able to challenge or does not believe that it is able to successfully challenge if assessed
by tax authorities. Such definitions involve significant judgments and may change as a result of changes
in tax laws and regulations, the determination of expected results from tax revenues and the results of tax
audits by tax authorities.

Financial instruments’ fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value of financial
instruments, the Company takes into account quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Financial assets’ fair value is determined according to market value on active financial exchange markets.

The market value of financial liabilities (exchange traded notes) is calculated as a cost of Company’s
financial assets less Company’s expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iShares US Aggregate Bond
UCITS ETF USD 35,535 n/a 0%  USD 74,770
Total 74,770

All financial assets were acquired in the transaction with related party Astana International Exchange
Market Liquidity Services Ltd. (AIX MLS Ltd.) dated 6 December 2019. Initially, 35,535 shares and 1
thousand Dollars were transferred to Company in exchange of exchange trade notes, issued by the
Company (Note 6). As such, all the Company’s financial assets are held until maturity date of
aforementioned notes when the former would be transferred to the holders of notes.

Notes can also be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before maturity date, which
would cause the corresponding outflow of financial assets before maturity date.

The Company is permitted to hold only cash and shares as its assets.
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6 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The terms of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Issuer Quantity Maturity date interest rate Currency Value
iX US Aggregated Bonds
SPC Limited 35,535 5 December 2029 0%  USD 75,139
Total 75,139

All financial liabilities were issued by Company and sold to the related party AIX MLS Ltd. on 6 December
20109.

Notes are unsecured and can be redeemed by Company or the initial purchaser (as a holder) before
maturity date. The value of exchange traded notes is calculated as a cost of Company’s financial assets
less Company’s expenses. Overall quantity of issued notes is 35,535 as at 31 December 2019.

7 Related Party Transactions

The parties, one of which is in the position to exercise control over the other, may have significant
influence on operational and financial decisions of the other party, or which are under joint control, are
considered related. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

The Company’s related parties are the Company’s shareholders (Note 1), companies under common
control (namely, AIX MLS Ltd.), its affiliates and the key management.

For 2019, transactions between related parties were as follows:

2019
Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Placement of exchange traded notes 75,748
AIX FM Limited
Administrative expenses (112)
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Related Party Transactions (continued)

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31 December 2019

Astana International Exchange Market Liquidity Services Limited
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 75,139

The Company has no staff and is entirely managed by parent company AIX Ltd. Remuneration for the
Company’s management for 2019 was 11 thousand Tenge recognized in administrative expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies

Political and Economic Conditions

Over the last few years there were some improvements in the country’s economic situation, however, the
Kazakhstan economy continues to demonstrate features characteristic for developing markets including,
but not limited to, absence of national currency that is freely convertible outside the country and low
liquidity of debt and equity securities in the markets.

The Company’s financial position and future operations may be deteriorated by lingering economic
difficulties characteristic for developing economies. The Company Management is able to foresee neither
the extent nor duration of economic difficulties or estimate their effect, if any, on these financial
statements.

Taxation
The Company is subject to taxation under the Kazakhstan Tax Code and the Constitutional law on AIFC.

Kazakhstan tax laws and practices are continuously modified and consequently are subject to various
interpretations and frequent changes which may have retrospective effect. Besides, interpretation of tax
laws by tax authorities with respect to the Company transactions and business may differ from the
management’s interpretation. Consequently, the Company transactions may be challenged by tax
authorities, and the Company may be charged with additional taxes, fines and penalties. Tax periods are
open for retrospective inspection by Kazakhstan tax authorities during five years.

Although there is a risk that Kazakhstan tax authorities may challenge the policies applied, the Company
Management believes that its position will be successfully supported in case of any dispute. Therefore,
as at 31 December 2019 no provisions for potential tax liabilities were accrued.
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Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Legal Processes and Actions

In the normal course of business, the Company may constitute as a target of different legal processes
and actions. The Company evaluates the likelihood of significant liabilities with due account for particular

circumstances and reflects relevant provision in the financial statements only when it is likely that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle liabilities and the amount of liability can be reliably estimated.

The Company Management believes that actual liabilities, if any, will not affect the current financial
position and financial performance of the Company. Due to the circumstances stated above no provisions
were formed in these financial statements.

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s operations are exposed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management program focuses on unpredictability of financial risks and is aimed at
minimising the potential adverse impact on the Company's financial performance. The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposure.

Categories of financial instruments
As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments were as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,770
Cash at bank 370

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (75,139)

Interest Rate Risk

As at the reporting date, the Company has no assets or liabilities with floating interest rates, therefore
Management does not disclose analysis of sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Currency Risk

The Company’s exposure to a risk associated with changes in foreign exchange rates, is associated with
the Company’s activities. In 2019, the supply of goods is denominated in USD. Thus, the main currency
risk concentration is associated with a change in the exchange rate of USD against tenge. Management
does not hedge its currency risks due to the inactive market of financial instruments in the Republic of
Kazakhstan.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Currency Risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the structure of financial instruments in USD were as follows:

uUsD
2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,770
Cash at bank 370
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (75,139)
Net foreign currency position as at 31 December 1

A 10% weakening of tenge versus USD as at 31 December would have no effect on the capital and profit
(loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the assumption that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain unchanged.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Maximum credit risk exposure is shown
below:

31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,770
Cash at bank 370

Credit risk associated with balances of the accounts in financial institutions is controlled by the Company's
management in accordance with the Company's cash management policy. The maximum extent of the
Company’s sensitivity to the credit risk arising from the default of financial institutions is equal to the
carrying amount of these financial assets.

The following table shows the balance of financial assets in banks at the reporting date using the credit
ratings of Fitch Rating:

Location Rating Amount
Reiffesenbank Russia BBB/Stable 74,770
Bank CenterCredit Kazakhstan  B/Stable 370

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk management objective is to ensure that the Company always has adequate funds. Due
to the dynamic nature of the operating activities, the Company seeks to maintain flexibility of financing by
ensuring sufficient funds.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss should be paid within 9 years after the reporting date.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Market risk limits are set and continuously reviewed by the parent company AIX Ltd. As a part of their
established market risk management process, the market risk department also monitors early signs of
possible changes in market conditions such as: anticipated and actual changes to interest rates; socio-
economic factors driving mortgage prepayment behaviours; and economic and geopolitical factors driving
currency and equity price movements. Market risk limits are ultimately approved by the AIX Ltd. Board of
Directors.

At an operational level, market risk is primarily managed by AIX Ltd., which is responsible for ensuring
that the Company’s exposures are in compliance with market risk limits approved by the AIX Ltd. Board
of Directors and to take adequate actions when necessary.

Company’s total market risk exposure as follows:

Carrying Non-traded Primary risk
amount  Traded risk risk sensitivity

Financial assets
Fmgnual assets at fair value through 74,770 74,770 Equity price,
profit or loss FX*
Cash at bank 370 - 370 FX
Financial liabilities
Flna'nmal liabilities at fair value through (75.139) (75.139) Equity price,
profit or loss FX

*Foreign exchange rates

A 10% strengthening of financial instruments’ market equity prices as at 31 December would have the
following effect on the capital and profit (loss) for the period. This analysis was performed based on the
assumption that all other variables remain unchanged.

2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,477
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (7,477)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. Management believes that the
inputs it uses to determine fair value belongs to Level 1 inputs, as its shares are traded on reputed
international stock exchanges.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to the participants and benefits to other stakeholders as well as to maintain
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company can adjust the amount of dividends paid to the participants, ensure return on the
participants’ investment, issue new capital and sell assets in order to reduce the debt.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events after the reporting date.
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